
   Department of Transportation 
   Board of Directors  
                                   Notice of Public Meeting 
   1263 South Stewart Street 
   Third Floor Conference Room 
   Carson City, Nevada 
   July 8, 2013 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Presentation of Retirement Plaques to 25+ Year Employees – Informational item only. 
 

2. Presentation of Awards – Informational item only. 
 

3. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only. 
 
4. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins. Informational item only. 

 
5. Approval of June 10, 2013 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes – For possible action. 
 
6. Update on U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Audit and NDOT’s Storm Water 

Program – Informational Item Only. 
 
7. Report on the Department of Transportation’s Efforts to Reduce Traffic Fatalities – 

Informational item only. 
 

8. Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action. 
 
9. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only.  
 
10. Overview of Condemnation Process, Inverse Condemnation Claims Including Article 1 

Section 22 of the State Constitution (which was added as a result of the People’s 
Initiative to Stop the Taking of Our Land initiative petition commonly known as PISTOL). 

 – Informational item only. 
 
11. Old Business 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated June 24, 2013 – Informational item only. 

 
12. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins.  Informational item only. 

 
13. Adjournment – For possible action. 

 
  



Notes:   
 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
• The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 
• Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 

to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

• This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

• Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 
• Request for such supporting materials should be made to Holli Stocks at (775) 888-7440 or 

hstocks@dot.state.nv.us. Such supporting material is available at 1263 South Stewart Street, Carson 
City, Nevada 89712 and if available on-line, at www.nevadadot.com. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office       
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building    
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada   
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 June 26, 2013 
 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: July 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 2: Presentation of Awards – Informational Item Only 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
This item is to recognize the Department of Transportation and staff for awards and recognition 
received. 
 
Background: 
 
Associated General Contractors of America 
MARVIN M. BLACK EXCELLENCE IN PARTNERING AWARD 
West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build Project 
 
As part of the West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build Project, NDOT utilized an innovative 
Accelerated Bridge Construction technique. New I-15 bridges were constructed next to existing 
bridges. Each existing bridge was then demolished, and new bridges slid into place overnight, 
reducing bridge construction time by six months while still allowing interstate traffic to flow 
smoothly using exit and on-ramps. 
 
Recognizing how NDOT and the design-build team of Horrocks Engineers and W.W. Clyde 
successfully utilized team-building, conflict resolution, a formal partnering charter and improved 
communication with all involved, the project received the prestigious Marvin M. Black 
Excellence in Partnering Award.  
 
The project was constructed using the design-build method in which design and construction 
are more closely linked to produce time and cost efficiencies. Close interaction with local 
agencies and the public, as well as extensive partnering with the contractor, was also vital to the 
project. 
 
International Partnering Institute 
PARTNERED PROJECT OF THE YEAR AWARD- Diamond Level 
West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build Project 
 
The West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build Project also received the International Partnering 
Institute’s top award, the Partnered Project of the Year Diamond Award. 
 
The award recognizes how the project incorporated project stakeholders, utilized partnering 
best practices and overcame any project constraints to deliver an outstanding transportation 
enhancement. 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



American Society of Civil Engineers- Truckee Meadows Branch 
OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENT IN CIVIL ENGINEERING- Transportation 
I-580 Freeway Extension Project 
 
NDOT and engineering consultant CH2M Hill were recognized for outstanding civil engineering 
of the I-580 Freeway Extension. 

Opened in summer 2012, the 8.5-mile, six-lane freeway from south Reno to Washoe Valley 
consists of two interchanges and nine bridges, including the landmark 1,700 foot-long Galena 
Creek cathedral arch bridge, the world’s longest concrete cathedral arch bridge. 

The new freeway now provides a more direct, safe and quick route between Reno and the state 
capital for the approximately 30,000 vehicles traveling the stretch daily. 
 
Associated General Contractors- Nevada Chapter 
SENSITIVITY TO ENVIRONMENT/HISTORY/CULTURE- Project more than $5 million 
I-580 Freeway Extension Project 
 
NDOT’s I-580 Freeway Extension also received recognition from the Nevada chapter of the 
Associated General Contractors for environmental, cultural and historical sensitivity. 
 
Associated General Contractors- Nevada Chapter 
MEETING THE CHALLENGE OF A DIFFICULT JOB- Project more than $5 million 
I-80 Design-Build Project 
 
NDOT’s I-80 Design-Build Project reconstructed Interstate 80 through the heart of Reno, 
including replacing concrete as much as 40 years old in areas. Additional lanes and signing, 
striping, ramp and other improvements were also made.  
To help meet the challenge of constructing the vital project through the city’s interstate core, 
daily meetings at many project levels, from project managers to trade and craft foremen, helped 
keep the project on schedule and readily identify potential innovations and improvements. 
 
International Partnering Institute 
PARTNERED PROJECT OF THE YEAR- Sapphire Level 
Northbound 395 Improvement Project 
 
Along northbound U.S. 395 (I-580) through the heart of Reno, NDOT’s Northbound 395 
Improvement Project added auxiliary lanes, reconstructed on and off-ramps, widened bridges 
and made other improvements.  
 
Through structured partnering, working with stakeholders, weekly team meetings and project 
walk-throughs to quickly identify project opportunities or issues and a full public outreach plan 
that helped make the public aware of any travel-related impacts, the project was substantially 
completed five months ahead of schedule.  
 
The International Partnering Institute recognized the improvements as an outstanding project 
that utilized the best in partnering practices.  
 
International Partnering Institute 
PARTNERED PROJECT OF THE YEAR- Sapphire Level 
Moana Lane Diverging Diamond Interchange 
 
NDOT constructed Nevada’s first diverging diamond interchange (DDI) at I-580 and Moana 
Lane in Reno. At diverging diamond interchanges, traffic briefly crosses over to the left, opposite 



side of the roadway. The unique interchange configuration enhances safety and traffic flow by 
allowing a free left turn onto freeway on-ramps.  
 
The project was recognized for a commitment to using best partnering practices and including 
all stakeholders to deliver an outstanding project. 
 
Associated General Contractors- Nevada Chapter 
Contractor Innovation- Project more than $5 million 
Moana Lane Diverging Diamond Interchange 
 
NDOT’s Moana Lane Diverging Diamond Interchange Project also received recognition from the 
Associated General Contractors’ Nevada chapter for contractor innovation. The project, built by 
contractor Granite Construction, utilized a fast track, two-phase construction schedule to 
minimize construction impacts and open in only 70 calendar days. 
 
Cesar Chavez Day  
Union Project of the Year 
Moana Lane Diverging Diamond Interchange 
 
Contractor Granite Construction received recognition for the Moana Lane Diverging Diamond 
Interchange Project as union project of the year during Nevada’s annual Cesar Chavez event. 
 
Western Cooperative Test Group 
SUPERIOR QUALITY/HIGHEST MEASURE OF PARTICIPATION- Materials Sample Testing 
of Performance Grade Binder 
 
NDOT’s two asphalt materials labs are dedicated to testing and ensuring the highest quality of 
asphalt materials on all state roads. Use of quality materials with the most efficient lifestyle cost 
and material recycling are priorities of the labs. 
 
The labs were recently recognized for superior quality and breadth of asphalt binder testing by 
the Western Cooperative Test Group. The group shares innovative techniques to improve 
blacktop and the standardized testing of asphalt material all to enhance the use, safety and 
value of asphalt roads across the west. 
 
 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
This is an informational item only. 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Meg Ragonese, Public Information Officer 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

1 

 

Governor Brian Sandoval 
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto 
Controller Kim Wallin 
Frank Martin 
Len Savage 
Tom Fransway 
Rudy Malfabon 
Bill Hoffman 
Dennis Gallagher  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Sandoval: Ladies and gentlemen, I’ll call the Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board Meeting to order.  We’ll begin with Agenda Item No. 1, receive 
Director’s Report.  Director Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor, Board members.  A lot to report on this month, a lot 
of good news, in fact, with the opening of the lanes getting back to the 
normal configuration at Meadowood Mall on I-580 there in Reno.  The 
contractor was able to get the lanes restriped back to normal and get the 
speed limit back up to 65 miles per hour, so that was good. 

 The other thing that was good news is we received a grant from Federal 
Highway Administration.  I’d like to thank Sue Klekar, the Division 
Administrator for a $1.2 million grant for Highways for Life.  And the 
Highways for Life program is a federal program that’s looking for 
innovation and longevity in the infrastructure.  One of the things that we’re 
doing on the -- it was received for the Carlin Tunnel CMAR project which 
the Board previously approved, and looking at change the lighting system to 
an LED system which is going to be a big improvement in power usage, in 
effectiveness, particularly through -- when they have a power outage, the 
generator in that tunnel that could only light so many of the lights that were 
existing.  So this will benefit the Carlin Tunnel project. 

 As far as the -- one of the issues that’s going to be coming up next month at 
the Board meeting is the approval of the large contract, $4.5 million 
contract, for consultant services on our Clean Water Act compliance issue 
and the EPA audit that we had provided to the Board members to review.  
We’ve been meeting with the Nevada Department of Conservation and 
Natural Resources Director Leo Drozdoff, and the Division of 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

2 

 

Environmental Protection which grants us the permitting for our current 
storm water pollution program.  So we’ll give the Board a lot more detailed 
information about what we’re doing to get into compliance with that 
program and the EPA audit findings next month. 

 Well, as everybody knows the legislative session ended a lot of bills that 
effected NDOT were approved.  And I wanted to mention quickly some of 
those.  The Construction Manager At Risk, or CMAR process, was 
approved under AB 283.  NDOT will be required to submit a report to the 
legislature on the effectiveness of that type of delivery method.  And we 
believe we have proven success in CMAR projects that will be included in 
that report. 

 Another one that’s -- that we approved, we had the safety issue on open 
container law compliance when the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration looked at our law.  They found that it was not in compliance 
because it didn’t exempt the driver of a cab or a limo.  So that bill corrected 
the open container law in Nevada, eliminated that exemption.  And 
hopefully, depending on when that law goes into effect, we have to check 
that out, we were having to shift $7 million from our regular program to 
safety program, so we will no longer have to do that shift in the future by 
achieving compliance on our open container law. 

 There were some other bills.  The Road Transfer Bill, Assembly Bill 18 was 
passed and we will have to bring before the Board the policies on how to 
conduct the road transfer process and road relinquishments.  I know that it’s 
an issue that’s very critical to the Department, and the Governor has always 
been interested in the state transferring roads to the counties.  And all this 
bill does is required us to adopt policy to conduct those transfers and 
relinquishments. 

 The other bill that I wanted to mention, the Assembly Bill 413 was one that 
was promoted by Southern Nevada RTC.  And it had to do with fuel tax 
indexing in Clark County for the next three years, then it would be subject to 
a public vote.  But the Clark County Commission can actually enact this fuel 
tax indexing.  They’ve been working with -- discussing with DMV as far as 
the programming that would be required to achieve this fuel tax indexing 
measure, similar to what’s been enabled in Washoe County.  But the bottom 
line is that it’ll raise some additional revenue for the county, the cities in 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

3 

 

Southern Nevada and the RTC of Southern Nevada.  And the RTC has 
indicated to NDOT that they’re willing to -- through -- after their Board 
supports that and approves it, they’re willing to give NDOT some additional 
revenue for two key projects.  One was the U.S. 95 widening project in the 
northwest part of Las Vegas, and also the Boulder City Bypass Phase 1 
project which is NDOT’s responsibility from Southern Henderson to U.S. 
95.  RTC of Southern Nevada has responsibility for Boulder City Bypass 
Phase 2, which is (inaudible) as a toll road, but didn’t really pencil out.  And 
that was from U.S. 95 all the way around Boulder City itself and into the 
mountainous area and then connecting to the interchange there by the new 
Colorado River Bridge, the O’Callaghan Tillman Bridge. 

 So I just wanted to point out to the Board that they are willing to fund some 
state projects as well as several local projects.  And another thing to note 
was that the RTC of Southern Nevada feels that it’s very critical to support 
the construction of Phase 2, and they’re proposing to their Board $300 
million of that fuel tax indexing revenue to go towards construction of Phase 
2 of Boulder City Bypass future I-11.  So I wanted to mention that. 

 Other issues to mention to the Board, we had a -- I had mentioned 
previously that we had a settlement issue on the Blue Diamond widening 
project that had to do with changing access to a property owner by the 
railroad tracks.  I indicated that we were going to go last month to the Board 
of Examiners.  That actually just missed the Agenda, so we’re actually 
going to go tomorrow to the Board of Examiners for that settlement issue.  It 
is a legal settlement, so it has -- is subject to Board of Examiners approval, 
but it’s for $400,000 due to access restrictions for that property by the 
railroad tracks. 

 The other thing to mention is that we will be doing a lot of maintenance 
activities in -- here in Northern Nevada.  And I wanted to mention because 
there -- it’s critical that we start getting the word out.  We’re going to be 
working with the media on these, what we call flush seals.  And it’s 
basically spraying a layer of oil to seal the surface of the roadway.  But 
you’ll see some of that work in June on the 580 portion here in Carson City, 
also up at State Route 28.  So we’re going to be doing this work at night and 
requiring full closures of the roadway.  Doing a lot of media outreach, as I 
mentioned, to let people know and there’s alternative routes and when to 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

4 

 

avoid this work, because we feel that we can get this work done a lot more 
efficiently at night and have less impact on the public.  So we’ll be getting 
that word out as far as those two flush seal projects. 

 And I wanted to also mention there was an issue with an encroachment on a 
parking garage that’s being constructed by -- right next to Project NEON 
there.  It’s by the outlet mall on Grand Central Parkway, which is near the 
Clark County Government Center down the street a ways.  We have an 
onramp there to I-15.  And we have a right-of-way line that’s quite a ways 
back from the ramp, but there was a fence there and we discovered that the 
fence had been taken down and there was construction going on. 

So we met with the representatives of the owner of that mall and they will 
be submitting a permit.  We discussed it with Federal Highway 
Administration.  But what we’ll have to do is just change the access line -- 
the control of access line along that route.  It requires federal approval.  It 
requires a permit from NDOT approved by Federal Highway 
Administration.  But I wanted to bring it to the Board’s attention that we did 
everything that we could so that we don’t delay this multi-million dollar 
construction project, and we felt that we could work through the permitting 
issues with the Federal Highway Administration and keep that project going. 

 And that’s pretty much the Director’s Report, Governor. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Malfabon.  Questions from Board members for the 
Director?  Tom -- Mr. Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Mr. Director, you mentioned that the relinquishment 
issue had passed into law.  That will happen the 1st of July.  When do you 
anticipate the Board dealing with the mandate of having to set the policy for 
that? 

Malfabon: I think that it’s probably going to take us about, I don’t know, I was thinking 
about three months, but Tom Greco, you could probably -- November?  
Okay.  So we’ll have at the November Board meeting for approval of the 
policy that’s being adopted.  So we’ll definitely have the opportunity to send 
it out to Board members and discuss it prior to the November Transportation 
Board meeting for adoption of that policy. 

Fransway: Thank you, Rudy.  Thank you, Governor. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

5 

 

Sandoval: Any other questions?  We’ll move on to public comment.  Is there any 
member of the public here in Carson City that would like to provide 
comment to the Board?  Yes, ma’am. 

Cummings: Thank you very much.  I’m Amy Cummings, the Director of Planning at 
RTC of Washoe County.  I’m here to thank NDOT for their efforts under 
Item 11, our amendment to the STIP.  There’s some provisions in MAP-21 
that allow for early right-of-way acquisition, but it’s not been done before.  
So we’ve been working very closely with the staff here and through 
implementing these early right-of-way acquisition provisions, we’re going 
to be able to accelerate the Pyramid/McCarran Intersection project.  We’ve 
been approached by many of the homeowners who would like to have this 
process over with as quickly as possible, so we’re working with them and 
moving forward with this project.  And, again, I want to thank the NDOT 
staff for helping us develop these new procedures and move forward.  Thank 
you. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much. 

Malfabon: And just to clarify, Governor, what MAP-21 allowed was before the 
environmental process is completed that a state DOT can acquire 
right-of-way or, you know, any use of federal funds.  Those recipients such 
as the RTC in Washoe County can acquire right-of-way before the approval 
of the environmental document.  And the Federal Highway Administration 
worked closely with us in adoption of that procedure, and appreciate your 
efforts, Governor, in signing the documents that allowed that to go forward. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Any other public comment from Carson City?  Any public 
comment from Southern Nevada? 

Cortez Masto: No, Governor. 

Rouas: No comments -- no comments here.  No public comments.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 3, approval of 
May 13, 2013 Department of Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
minutes.  Have all the members had an opportunity to review the minutes 
and are there any changes?  If there are none, the Chair will accept a motion 
for approval. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

6 

 

Fransway: Motion to approve. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway moves to approve.  Madam Wallin has seconded the 
motion.  Any questions on the motion?  All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  The motion passes unanimously.  We’ll move on to Agenda 
Item No. 4, review and ratify the selection of the contractor for SR 207 
Kingsbury Grade Construction Manager At Risk project, and improve an 
agreement with Q&D Construction Company for preconstruction services 
for this project. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Adam Searcy, the Project Manager for this project 
will make a presentation. 

Searcy: Thank you, Governor, Board Members, Director Malfabon.  My name is 
Adam Searcy.  I’m a Project Manager with NDOT.  Pleased to be with you 
here today to discuss the Kingsbury Grade Project.  As you know, this is 
NDOT’s fourth Construction Manager At Risk Project.  The procedure you 
see before you here was developed and approved by this Board 
approximately 18 months ago.  This was the process that we followed very 
carefully leading up to today, where you see we are here with the Board 
approval. 

 I want to give you a little bit of background on the project and this project 
specifically before we get to this Agenda item.  The project overview for 
those of you who might not be familiar with this route, Kingsbury Grade 
State Route 207 extends from the intersection with U.S. 50 up near South 
Lake Tahoe, climbs up and out of the basin there at Daggett Summit.  This 
project specifically continues just about a half a mile, so we’re looking at 
about a four-mile stretch from U.S. 50 up out of the basin over Daggett 
Summit.  It includes tremendously windy, steep terrain.  It’s traveled daily 
by a number of local residents, commuters to and from South Lake Tahoe, 
as well as commercial and business districts near the intersection with U.S. 
50.  So for those reasons the evaluation process that was followed to 
consider this as a CMAR project viewed this as an ideal candidate for the 
Construction Manager At Risk delivery. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

7 

 

 Within this environment, this sensitive Lake Tahoe basin environment, we 
are proposing to complete a full-depth pavement reconstruction.  So this is a 
little more significant than what we typically complete on some of our other 
roadways, in excess of potentially 12 inches of full-depth pavement 
excavation.  We’ll also be completing water quality improvements.  These 
are obviously intended to protect Lake Tahoe, but carry somewhat moderate 
risks when you’re doing excavations of this nature, culvert replacement, 
drainage inlet replacement, et cetera.  And then, of course, in the 
environment the narrow corridor, the complicated traffic control scenarios, 
et cetera, that we’ll up against.  We really want to make sure that we 
develop a carefully and well-thought out plan before we ever put a shovel in 
the ground. 

 So beginning with the RFP we issued to the public, request for proposals, 
we received five extremely well-qualified proposals from the industry.  We 
evaluated those proposals in the month of April -- or, pardon me, issued the 
RFP in April, evaluated them in May.  The very diverse panel, along with -- 
in keeping with our past practices, invited members from the construction 
industry and key stakeholder agencies to observe this evaluation process, 
view these extremely well, and ultimately recommended three of the five 
move to the interview phase.  We actually conducted the interviews with 
Granite, Q&D and Quall Contractors on May 13th, again with observers 
present.  The evaluation panel viewed Q&D Construction as the most 
well-qualified for this project in this scope. 

 That recommendation was done -- made to Deputy Director Hoffman and 
approved, as well, by FHWA, essentially bringing us here to our 
recommendation today.  So in addition, pending this potential action, we 
will be meeting as a team, finalizing the design, conversing with the public 
and stakeholders on what we believe the next steps and best approach 
should be to construction, negotiating and finalizing a construction contract, 
and returning to the Board probably in early 2014 with a negotiated GMP, 
which you’ll hear about on the next Agenda item for a different project.  I 
just wanted to clarify that we intend to begin construction likely as -- in the 
spring as the season will allow in 2014. 

 But here today, our recommendation is to proceed with the ratification and 
selection of Q&D Construction, as well as the approval of the negotiated 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

8 

 

preconstruction services agreement with Q&D.  So that concludes my 
presentation.  I would like to thank the Board for their support not only of 
the CMAR program but your attention here this morning.  If you have any 
questions on this project or the process that we followed, I would welcome 
any at this time.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  Member Martin. 

Martin: Yes, sir.  Thank you very much.  I appreciate your presentation.  There is a 
certain component to this that’s taking over the contract that was (inaudible) 
construction; is that correct? 

Searcy: We are evaluating a number of elements of work that were not fully 
completed associated with the contract that you mentioned.  We’ll be 
evaluating them from a cost standpoint and likely incorporating them into 
this scope of work.  As you know, there are some legal resolutions that are 
associated with that work, but at this time we are considering them for 
completion with this project, yes. 

Martin: Okay.  Because that’s what I read in my package here.  So you’re saying it’s 
a maybe whether or not they’re going to be included? 

Searcy: I believe it’s more encumbered by the legal proceedings, but in all 
likelihood we will resolve those with the bonding company, incorporate that 
scope into this work and proceed as one seamless project.  That is our 
intention. 

Martin: My question was is that having studied that project in pretty good detail, 
there was huge numbers of oversights in design.  And I’m assuming during 
this preconstruction process you would do the proper amount of 
investigation to make sure that Q&D doesn’t run into the same issues that 
Peak ran into. 

Searcy: Absolutely.  That’s a large part of the reason behind using the CMAR 
delivery method to reevaluate all the risks and come up with the best 
approach possible before we begin construction. 

Martin: Thank you. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

9 

 

Sandoval: Further questions?  What is the construction window?  So we would 
approve this in the first part of next year.  Would they be able to get this 
done in one season? 

Searcy: That’s an excellent question, sir.  That remains to be seen.  It’s quite a bit of 
work to complete in one season with a lot of schedule constraints.  It is one 
of our highest goals, but if it’s not the right solution for the public, as you 
know a tremendous traffic control constraints, special events, tourist 
considerations, et cetera.  It may not be a one-season project, but we’ll have 
that ironed out when we come back to you with the GMP. 

Sandoval: Any further questions?  If there are none, the Chair will accept a motion for 
approval of the ratification of the selection of the contractor for the SR 207 
Kingsbury Grade CMAR project and approve the agreement with Q&D 
Construction for preconstruction services for this project. 

Martin: Move for approval, sir. 

Sandoval: Member Martin has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  Motion passes unanimously with the Lieutenant Governor 
absent.  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 5, approval of the 
construction contract with Q&D Construction for the Stateline to Stateline 
Bikeway Phase 1C Project delivery via Construction Manager At Risk 
process. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Project Manager Pedro Martinez will make this 
presentation to the Board. 

Rodriquez: Good morning, Governor.  Good morning members of the Transportation 
Board.  For the record, it’s Pedro Rodriguez… 

Malfabon: Rodriguez.  I’m sorry.  I should have known that. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

10 

 

Rodriguez: …Project Manager of the Stateline to Stateline Bikeway Project Phase 1C.  
Today I’m here to present Contract 3541 for possible action.  Back in 
November the Board approved the selection of Q&D Construction for the 
CMAR project.  Since then the design has progressed.  We’ve negotiated a 
GMP.  We’ve received FHWA concurrence.  And today I’m here to present 
the GMPs for your consideration of award. 

 The overall bikeway project is broken up into two phases -- four phases 
totaling approximately 32 miles.  The Department was involved with one 
segment of Phase 1, which was Phase 1C.  A Public Lands Highway 
Discretionary grant was awarded to the Tahoe Transportation District for 
Phase 1.  The Tahoe Transportation District is the overall project manager.  
They’ve decided to apply the entire grant to Phase 1C. 

 Phase 1C is approximately one mile long.  It begins at Elks Point Road, 
meanders north around Round Mound, goes through the Round Hill Pines 
Beach Resort and ultimately connects back into U.S. 50 just north of the 
Round Hill Pines entrance.  The entire project is situated on U.S. Forest 
Service property. 

 This project was thought to be a good candidate for the CMAR delivery 
method because of its environmental completion, its 30 percent level of 
design, its funding already identified, and its interaction it would require 
with multiple agencies in the Tahoe Basin.  Those agencies included the 
Department who administered the CMAR delivery method, who also 
procured the (inaudible) and the contractor and who will also administer the 
construction.  The Tahoe Transportation District who is the manager of the 
overall 32-mile project and who also procured the engineer was Lumos 
Engineering.  The U.S. Forest Service who is the owner of the site.  Douglas 
County who is the holder of the special use permit issued by the Forest 
Service and who will ultimately become the owner and operator of the bike 
trail once it’s completed.  TRPA which is the agency mandated to regulate 
the environment of the Lake Tahoe Basin.  And others like FHWA and the 
EP and HOAs. 

 The benefits of the CMAR process were realized during the design.  At the 
request of a project stakeholder, a connection was made from the Round Hill 
Pines Beach to the trail.  It was cleared environmentally.  And despite 
adding an additional 710 feet of additional trail and encroaching into the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

11 

 

construction season by one month, it was determined that the project would 
still be completed under budget and by fall of this year.  This depicts what 
the final alignment of the trail looks like. 

 On May 7th the bids were opened with a negotiated guaranteed maximum 
price of $1.4 million.  Pursuant to your approval, it’s anticipated that the 
notice to proceed will be issued out in a couple of weeks with construction 
to be completed by October 15th.  We recommend that Contract 3541 be 
awarded to Q&D Construction.  With that, I’d like to open it up with any 
questions. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Rodriguez.  Questions from Board members?  Mr. 
Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Thank you for your presentation.  I’ve got two 
questions.  Are we being asked today to approve Phase C for $1.4 million or 
is that for the whole project? 

Rodriguez: Thank you, Member Fransway.  We’re requesting that the Board approve 
contract with Q&D Construction for construction of just Phase 1C. 

Fransway: 1C.  And that’s $1.4 million? 

Rodriguez: Correct. 

Fransway: Okay.  Were there any applications for Question 1 funds on this project, do 
you know? 

Rodriguez: I wouldn’t be able to answer that, but a representative from the Tahoe 
Transportation District is here, and they’re the overall managing body of the 
32-mile project. 

Kirkland: Good morning, Mr. Governor, members of the Board.  Derrick Kirkland 
with the Tahoe Transportation District.  We have used the Question 1.  
We’ve been working very closely with state lands.  For this segment, 
specifically, we did not use Question 1 because we were successful in our 
grant application for the Public Lands Highways Discretionary money.  But 
we do -- we are using Question 1 funding for Phase 1B, which is completed, 
which was completed last summer, and we’re also intending to request more 
Question 1 funds for future phases. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

12 

 

Fransway: Okay.  I would wish you luck on that, because this fits very well into the 
(inaudible) trails element of (inaudible).  And I don’t know how long this 
total project is anticipated to be over time.  Could you answer that for me, 
the 36 miles? 

Kirkland: I mean, I -- what I can answer is that we are working on Phase 2 which is 
incline to San Harbor.  That environmental document is actually supposed to 
be released here in the very near future, probably within the next month or 
so.  And then as far as Phase 3, which is basically San Harbor to U.S. 50, 
we’re working very closely with IVGID and with Forest Service.  IVGID 
has a sewer export line.  That’s -- they’re reviewing to see if it needs to be 
replaced, so hopefully -- they’re interested in potentially moving that out of 
the highway and relocating onto Forest Service property, and then we would 
pave a bike trail on top of that, and that would also serve as their access road 
to their sewer export line. 

 So we’re definitely exploring those options.  If that is the case, then that 
could be completed as soon as 2016, 2017.  So that would rapidly speed up 
the process for building -- constructing the bikeway.  So it just kind of 
depends on construction dollars and how all that plays out, so… 

Fransway: Okay.  So that phase will complete the entire project? 

Kirkland: No.  There would still be from U.S. 50 to Round Hill, which what I imagine 
would probably not start for some time, so… 

Fransway: Okay.  So we’re looking at past 2017, aren’t we? 

Kirkland: Yes. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  Thanks, Governor. 

Kirkland: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Mr. Rodriguez, I’d just like to say thank you and 
compliment you on a concise and clear presentation.  Thank you. 

Rodriguez: Thank you. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

13 

 

Sandoval: Lieutenant Governor is not here, but I vaguely recall a concern by him.  I’ve 
got to ask.  But -- and I think it’s constrained by the federal regulations, but 
the width of the path.  He was concerned that you could basically drive a 
tank through that thing rather than it being a little bit narrow, and it’s -- how 
it’s going to encroach on some of the areas up there.  Do you have any 
comment with regard to that? 

Rodriguez: I understand that the multi-use recreational path would be required to be 10 
feet wide.  That’s why it was selected.  It also includes two-foot shoulders 
on each side.  That’s all I’d be able to comment on that, Governor. 

Sandoval: No, and as I said I know that he was -- if everyone recalls it the way I do, is 
that he was a little concerned with the width.  But I believe, as I said, that 
that’s all constrained by rules and regulations and… 

Rodriguez: That’s correct. 

Sandoval: …those types of things. 

Hoffman: And, Governor, if I may.  Bill Hoffman, Deputy Director.  It was emergency 
vehicle access.  So to… 

Sandoval: Sorry, I shouldn’t have used the word “tank.” 

Hoffman: It depends on the emergency, I guess, right? 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Hoffman: So, anyway, I think the Lieutenant Governor was a little bit more 
comfortable after we brought forward -- and actually it was TTD that came 
forward and said federal requirements and emergency response was required 
to have a path that wide, so… 

Sandoval: I just -- because he’s not here today, I wanted to ask and I think it’s 
important for purposes of the record to lay that -- to have that question 
answered. 

Hoffman: Sure. 

Sandoval: Any other questions for Mr. Rodriguez?  Thank you very much.  If there are 
none, the Chair will accept a motion for approval of Agenda Item No. 5, 
which is the approval of the construction contract with Q&D Construction 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

14 

 

for the Stateline to Stateline Bikeway Phase 1C Project delivery via CMAR 
process. 

Savage: Governor, I’ll move to approve. 

Sandoval: Member Savage has moved to approve.  Is there a second? 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: A second by Member Martin.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All those in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We’ll move on to Agenda Item 
No. 6, approval of contracts over $5 million. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Deputy Director Bill Hoffman will take this item.  
And just to mention that we are receiving the applications for the Assistant 
Director for Administration position and we will conduct interviews within 
the next month to fill that position. 

Hoffman: So good morning, Governor, Transportation Board members.  I’ll do my 
very best -- a Scott Sisco impression.  So we’ll try to move through this as 
quickly as we can, answering any questions that we may.  So Item No. 6 is 
for contracts over $5 million.  We had one contract that meets that 
requirement or -- so the Director recommends awarding the contract to 
Granite Construction Company.  This is Contract No. 3534 in the amount of 
$9, 886,886. 

Sandoval: And where is the project? 

Hoffman: The project -- I don’t -- I’m not quite sure. 

Savage: It’s U.S. 93. 

Malfabon: U.S. 93 (inaudible) Junction to Currie and Elko and White Pine counties.  
And this is an area, Governor, that has been identified as having several lane 
departure accidents, run off the road accidents.  So we’ll be doing some 
shoulder widening and flattening slopes. 

Sandoval: Again, I knew where it was, but I thought it was important that… 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

15 

 

Hoffman: You were testing me.  I’m filling in for Sisco.  I let you down a little bit 
there, didn’t I? 

Sandoval: But I thought it was important that we at least talk about where the project 
is. 

Hoffman: Sure. 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members?  Okay.  If there are none, the 
Chair will accept a motion for approval of Contract No. 3534 in the sum of 
$9,886,886 with Granite Construction. 

Wallin: Move to approve. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller has made a motion for approval.  Is there a second? 

Savage: Second. 

Sandoval: A second by Member Savage.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  The motion passes unanimously.  Move on to Agenda Item 
No. 7.  These are approval of agreements over $300,000. 

Hoffman: I’ll go ahead and take that one again.  So over $300,000, again we only had 
one agreement that met that criteria.  So it was the Schindler Elevator 
Corporation, Tropicana Pedestrian Bridge Preservation and Maintenance 
Agreement for $1,167,328.  And, again, it’s for the preventive maintenance 
on the Tropicana Pedestrian Bridges in Clark County. 

Malfabon: And just to add to Deputy Director Hoffman’s comments, Governor, we are 
in communication with the Tropicana Resort there on the corner of Las 
Vegas Boulevard and Tropicana Avenue.  We’ve been talking with Federal 
Highway Administration about the Tropicana taking over their corner -- the 
escalators on their corner.  And this contract still proceeds with what we’ve 
been doing for preventative maintenance on these escalators and elevators 
through this contractor, Schindler Elevator Corporation.  But definitely 
when we get into an agreement with the Tropicana and they proceed with 
their improvements to their corner, we can adjust this contract accordingly. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

16 

 

Sandoval: And either Mr. Hoffman or Mr. Malfabon, we’ve been negotiating the 
transfer of all these escalators.  I think we were talking about it when I sat 
on this Board as the Attorney General.  Is there any report on the status of 
that? 

Malfabon: What we’re looking forward to is to -- in the bill that provided Las Vegas 
Convention of Visitors Authority funding to the Department of 
Transportation required a certain level, $300 million.  And there is some 
revenue -- bond revenue that’s available.  We intend to request formally to 
their Board for use of that remaining revenue to be used on replacement of 
the escalators on all the corners at Las Vegas Boulevard and Tropicana 
Avenue. 

 Subsequent to that, we -- if we get the approval and proceed with the 
contract for replacement, we’ve been having discussions with Clark County 
Public Works about transferring the other three corners, transfer the one 
corner to Tropicana Resort. 

Sandoval: And as I said, it’s been a 10-year discussion.  Are we -- is it getting -- it all 
has to depend on that -- those funds? 

Malfabon: It depends on the improvement, Governor and Board members.  If we can 
get the escalators brought up to a certain level with a transit grade standard 
of escalators, the communications with Clark County Public Works have 
been more favorable recently.  If that occurs, then they would have to, 
obviously, take it to their county commission to accept it, but we’ve been 
having those discussions and it looked favorable if we can get the LVCVA 
to fund the replacement with the remaining bond revenue. 

Sandoval: And do you recall what the price would be for the replacement? 

Malfabon: I think that it -- John, if I’m correct, it was about $15-$16 million, which is 
in line with what is available from the bond revenue from LVCVA. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Any other questions from Board members?  If there are no 
further questions, the Chair will accept a motion for approval of the 
agreement described in Agenda Item No. 7. 

Wallin: Move to approve. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller has moved to approve.  Is there a second? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

17 

 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Martin.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  The motion passes unanimously.  We will move on to 
Agenda Item No. 8.  Mr. Hoffman. 

Hoffman: Okay.  Thank you, Governor.  So we have two contracts that were under $5 
million that were awarded between April 23, 2013 to May 20, 2013.  So the 
following bid was open and read related to Department of Transportation 
Contract 802-13, Project No. SPR13 Package C.  Project is to install four-
lane AVC detector loops, a special M1 cabinet.  And all’s I’m doing is just 
reporting on the projects that were awarded.  Okay.  So there’s no action 
item on that.  I just wanted you to be aware of the projects that were 
awarded.  And then if we move on to the next section, those are the 
agreements under $300,000 for informational purposes. 

Malfabon: And, Governor, if I may, the -- you’ll see agreements that are over the 
$300,000 limit.  Those are reported for information, but they are related to 
utility relocation contracts which our right-of-way division enters into on a 
regular basis for our construction projects to get utilities out of the way.  
Also, for some of the inter-local agreements with other public agencies, 
when they’re receiving the project funds, it’s reported and those are 
typically over $300,000 as well.  But it’s reported for informational 
purposes.  So that explains that.  And we’re prepared to answer any 
questions on specific agreements. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  One question, Item No. 33 on the contraction 
extension time.  It looks to me at this time it is only time extension without 
any associated dollars.  And can we expect that there won’t be any 
additional dollars through that contract on design services? 

Malfabon: This contract is for a design of the bridge at the Boulder City Phase 1 
project.  There’s a railroad track that serves a railroad museum there. 

Savage: Mm-hmm. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

18 

 

Malfabon: And we don’t expect that that’s going to require any additional cost. 

Terry: If anything, we think we’ve extended it far enough it’s extended in time 
because the way we’ve changed the phasing of that project and moved it 
back. 

Savage: Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Terry.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Martin. 

Martin: On Item No. 24, (inaudible) properties real estate development analysis.  
The real estate development analysis in Clark County, can you kind of 
explain to me what that’s about? 

Hoffman: Do we have anybody here that can answer that question?  I’m not familiar 
with the details.  Come on up, Paul. 

Saucedo: Yeah, Paul Saucedo, Chief Right-of-Way Agent.  Actually, that’s -- it was a 
legal hire for the Ad America lawsuit on, I think, it’s Boulder Bypass.  And 
that’s to help with strategies through the legal services. 

Martin: Thank you.  Item No. 6, Tahoe Transportation District.  I see an amendment 
for $264,868, which is basically a changer order to that agreement.  Is that 
correct? 

Greco: Good morning.  For the record, Tom Greco, Assistant Director of Planning.  
The original effort to (inaudible) dollar amount was an ARRA project.  And 
in order to do the -- in order to install the electronic fare boxes on all of the 
fleet, we added an amendment of about 10 percent of the original dollar 
amount.  Does that answer what you’re asking? 

Martin: So the fare boxes was not a part of the original agreement with the Tahoe 
Transportation District? 

Greco: Yes, it was.  And it was underestimated with the ARRA effort. 

Martin: Okay.  Then Items 3 and 4 for the NV Energy (inaudible) 763 and $170,000.  
These are, the way I understand it -- I’m trying to understand it.  This is not 
an increase in the amount of money that we’re paying to Nevada Power.  It’s 
just an increase in (inaudible)? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

19 

 

Malfabon: No, these are to enter into the relocation agreements with the power -- the 
utility company specifically.  So they were anticipated costs.  And, in fact, 
as you can see in the federal column, these are federally eligible expenses 
for utility relocations. 

Unidentified Male: In this case, we budgeted for these, what we pay NV Energy.  One 
agreement is for their engineering services, in other words, to design the 
relocation and the second agreement is to pay for their construction of those 
same improvements. 

Malfabon: And Director Malfabon.  This is -- this is just to expedite the process, Board 
members.  So we enter into design agreements first.  They get their design 
done.  They can put their cost to it for the relocation expense.  Then we 
enter into the actual construction agreement with the utility company for 
relocation. 

Martin: So these items are construction, not design… 

Malfabon: The… 

Martin: …(inaudible) talked about design agreements. 

Malfabon: In response, the first one is the design preliminary engineering costs, so it’s 
the design cost.  And then the second one is for the actual construction cost.  
But it’s related to the same relocation. 

Martin: Is that a hard dollar contract or (inaudible)? 

Malfabon: Typically, they have to -- they have procurement roles that they use certain 
contractors, but I believe that they’re using low bid system too in their 
procurements, but they just have a prequalification process for their 
contractors that do that type of work depending on the utility company. 

Martin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Further questions?  Mr. Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  I have questions on three items.  One of them -- we 
returned to No. 6.  Mr. Greco maybe could answer this question. 

Greco: Yes, sir. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

20 

 

Fransway: Mr. Greco, I notice a receivable amount of over $1 million, and I’m 
wondering it seems as though that is a grant.  Is that in reference to the -- it 
being an ARRA project or is that grant from somewhere else? 

Greco: I would like to respond that that is the grant, but my confidence level is only 
about 70 percent.  I’ll get you that answer. 

Hoffman: And these are information items, so what we’ll do, we’ll follow up -- we’ll 
follow up in full detail on all of the items that -- if we haven’t answered 
your question, again, this is Bill Hoffman for the record, we’ll send you 
information… 

Fransway: Okay. 

Hoffman: …A to Z on that. 

Fransway: Well, I do know that as far as I’m concerned, I’m sure the whole Board, that 
grants are important to us.  And when we receive them, then it’s nice to have 
an update on where they came from.  Also, No. 31, this is for regional 
bicycle plans for the counties.  And I’m wondering what that procedure is 
and how it -- how it comes about. 

Greco: Yes, sir.  We did an RFP, a qualifications-based search and this consultant 
was the most qualified.  We negotiated and established a price and a scope 
of services, and it is to do a bicycle plan within the 14 regional counties that 
are not within an MPO area. 

Fransway: Okay.  And MPL… 

Greco: MPO, metropolitan… 

Fransway: Okay. 

Greco: …planning organization.  That’s RTC South, RTC North, Campo in Carson 
and Tahoe for MPOs. 

Fransway: Okay.  Basically, it’s for rural bicycling then? 

Greco: Yes, sir. 

Malfabon: Yes. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

21 

 

Fransway: All right. 

Malfabon: And this is Deputy -- I mean, this is Director Malfabon.  In response to the 
specifics, we are consolidating some counties together to have these regional 
plans put together.  It’s going to take about a year to get all these -- the rural 
counties accounted for and have these plans developed.  And when we’re 
done with that we can definitely have a presentation to the Board.  This is 
part of an obligation in our statewide bicycle plan to develop these rural 
counties’ bicycle plans. 

Fransway: Okay.  Well, I think it’s a good plan and I certainly wish everybody luck in 
getting it done. 

Hoffman: Thank you, sir. 

Fransway: One more, 35.  I’m wondering what is done with these airport pavement 
surveys and is there input from the FAA on those or is it strictly state? 

Greco: For the record again, Tom Greco.  This is -- this is a state effort to meet 
FAA… 

Fransway: Okay. 

Greco: …and airport organization needs. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you. 

Greco: You’re welcome. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor. 

Martin: I have one follow-up question.  Is that -- those studies then, are they 
(inaudible) the FAA? 

Hoffman: Sure they are, yeah. 

Greco: They will be shared with the airport, the FAA, anybody interested. 

Martin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

22 

 

Wallin: Thank you, Governor.  I just have one question.  I know it’s hard to believe.  
On Item No. 32, you know how I always look to see if it’s funded by federal 
dollars versus state dollars.  And this is for landscape design for I-580.  And 
I notice it’s not funded by federal dollars.  And complaints I get from 
constituents a lot of times is, you know, why don’t we put more money into 
our roads and not put all these pretty things on the roads, which I kind of 
like them, but I can see their points.  And if it’s funded by federal dollars, I 
always tell them it shouldn’t be a problem.  Can you tell me why that’s not 
funded by federal or eligible for federal dollars? 

Malfabon: I will respond, Madam Controller.  When a lot of the other improvements 
were being performed on I-580 and I-80 design-build project, as you saw 
there was a lot of nice landscaping features that were included in that.  So a 
lot of these stakeholders in the community that reside in the southern part of 
Reno were saying, well, why not these interchanges too.  So the Department 
looked at doing some landscape design for that, but not committing to 
construction to develop the concepts for landscaping those southern 
interchanges on I-580. 

 Also, under MAP-21 there was a regulation change that -- it used to be a 
standalone landscape project was eligible for federal funds.  Now if it’s a 
standalone landscape project, it is not eligible.  It has to be part of another 
type of improvement. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Any other questions?  And while we’re on the subject of 
landscaping, I know it’s not really within this contract.  It’s not on I-580, but 
on the 80.  Mr. Director, we had talked about the mustang that was on the 
University of Nevada exit and there was some Boise State folks that were 
really happy that there was that horse on the exit. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: Has there been any progress with regard to that? 

Malfabon: We had had some discussions and -- with the university and also with some 
stakeholders, alumni association members and we’re looking at changing 
out that wild horse there because it resembles an opponent’s mascot.  We 
did want to stay within the theme that we had developed for the corridor, 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

23 

 

which was also developed with those -- with a university in partnership.  So 
we were looking at making that change before football season. 

Sandoval: And do we have any idea what it will be? 

Malfabon: At least, initially we looked at some alternatives.  We wanted to stay within 
the theme that we had selected, so we’ll probably do -- just mirror the one -- 
the Reno Monument that’s on the other side of the interstate, the other 
direction with a tree.  We wanted to look into the possibility of maybe 
further up having a monument that was more representative of the 
university.  So looking at the right-of-way that’s available further on up as 
you go up the off-ramp. 

Fransway: Maybe we could put a wolf in the saddle. 

Hoffman: Or a cowboy. 

Sandoval: That’s not bad, Tom.  That’s not bad. 

Unidentified Male: I just thought take the horse and put in a wolf. 

Sandoval: And then also within these contracts there are at least three that are 
dedicated to the Boulder City Bypass, so we’re moving along with regard to 
that. 

Malfabon: Definitely, Governor.  We’ve been underway on Boulder City future I-11 
Phase 1 contracts.  We’ve been working closely with the property owners 
and dealing with those issues.  We actually have made some progress, but 
that one issue with one of the property owners is definitely probably going 
to go to court to settle that one.  But we have been making progress with 
K&L Dirt as far as their relocation expenses and looking at relocating that 
business, and have had discussions with the casino as well, the Railroad 
Pass Casino. 

 So the fencing contract and -- for tortoise fencing installation has been 
underway.  Salvaging the plants that are within the area is going to be 
excavated for the roadway that’s currently underway.  And we’ll be looking 
at the next phase of the project which is to construct the frontage road which 
will be occurring.  And as I indicated in the Director’s Report, if the RTC of 
Southern Nevada approves, if their Board approves giving us some 
additional funding from the fuel tax indexing, we could actually look at 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

24 

 

accelerating because we want to make sure that our project for our phase 
aligns timewise with their schedule for delivery of Phase 2.  And what 
they’re saying is if they do a design-build project for Phase 2, they’re 
looking at about a year from now putting out -- having a contract with a 
design-build firm.  So we definitely will coordinate with them on schedules 
and make sure that there’s alignment between our project and their project. 

Sandoval: And all things, if they go well, when would we see commencement of 
construction there? 

Malfabon: We will see -- if theirs goes forward, I would see in the fall of next year it 
could be under construction.  Same for us, we were looking at next year for 
the frontage road project, if I’m correct.  And that was just one of the 
phases.  Eventually, we have to do further phases to get all the way to the 
interchange with U.S. 95.  But it will advance to the point where you 
actually see road building out there instead of just fencing and plant salvage. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Board members, are there any further questions with regard to 
Agenda Item No. 8?  This is an informational item, so we’ll move on to 
Agenda Item No. 9, condemnation resolution. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  This is kind of a regular action that we run into when 
we’re requesting condemnation resolution so that we can proceed with -- if 
we need to.  If we’re not able to negotiate with the property owner, then we 
need to go to court to get right of entry on the property.  So we request the 
Board’s approval of the condemnation action for this acquisition. 

Sandoval: Board members, are there any questions with regard to Agenda Item No.9? 

Fransway: I have a motion if you’d like. 

Sandoval: What is the difference between the offer -- the offer and what the landowner 
is seeking to be compensated? 

Malfabon: The offer was $300,000 for the -- and $270,000, so $570,000 total for the 
property and the improvements.  As far as the -- I don’t think that we’ve 
received a counteroffer, so it’s one of those situations where they want more 
but they haven’t defined that or really tied it to other comparable sales in 
that area.  So we need that type of information in order to get federal 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

25 

 

reimbursement.  We just can’t give people what they say -- pull out of the 
air or something. 

Sandoval: Well, it’s hard to negotiate when we don’t even get a counteroffer in the first 
place. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  Any other questions?  Okay.  If there are none, the Chair will 
accept a motion for approval of the Condemnation Resolution No. 438 as 
described in Agenda Item 9A. 

Fransway: Move to adopt. 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway has moved to adopt the Condemnation Resolution No. 
438.  Member Martin has seconded the motion.  Any questions or 
discussion?  All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  The motion passes unanimously.  We’ll move on to Agenda 
Item No. 10, quick claim deed. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  This is a housekeeping item that occurred on a 
surplus property sale that there actually is a -- the request for Alley Water 
Supply, LLC has a deeded right for a majority of the water rights.  And this 
property is located on -- alongside the north side of Washington Avenue 
between Main Street and the Interstate 15.  And the Board had previously 
approved the sale of the surplus property, but this water rights issue was not 
identified in the -- in that agreement, so we’re just doing some cleanup on 
that and deeding the right -- the water rights over to the Alley Water Supply, 
LLC. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Director.  Any questions from Board members on Agenda 
Item No. 10?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Mr. Malfabon, were there a specific amount of water 
rights that were involved as far as acre footage? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

26 

 

Malfabon: To my knowledge, Paul, could you answer that?  Paul Saucedo, Chief of 
Right-of-Way Division. 

Saucedo: Yes, thank you, Director.  I’d have to get back to you on that.  I don’t 
believe that there were.  It was just that when we acquired the property 
initially we inadvertently also acquired the water rights.  Never appraised 
them.  There was no value receipt for them.  And so it created a cloud of the 
title.  Now what we do in our deeds is we specifically except out any water 
rights unless we actually need them as part of the acquisition.  But I couldn’t 
tell you right now exactly how many.  We can get back to you on that if 
you’d like. 

Fransway: Thank you. 

Malfabon: And I’m sorry, Governor.  I had indicated that you had previously -- the 
Board had previously approved the surplus property.  The surplus property 
is actually the parcel next to it on the other side of the railroad tracks.  So 
this is the parcel that’s next to the old trailer park there on north of 
Washington Avenue at Main Street. 

Sandoval: Any other questions?  If there are none, the Chair will accept a motion for 
approval of the disposal of NDOT water rights along SR 578 at Main Street 
and the City of Las Vegas Clark County, Nevada. 

Martin: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: Motion for approval by Member Martin.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We will move on to Agenda 
Item No. 11. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Assistant Director of Planning, Tom Greco, will 
handle this item. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

27 

 

Greco: Thank you, Rudy.  For the record, Tom Greco, NDOT Assistant Director of 
Planning.  Every other month we bring you amendments and modifications 
to the 2012-2015 STIP, and we have a few of each this month.  Looking at 
amendments, we have amendments offered by RTC Southern Nevada, 
Washoe RTC, Amendment No. 5 and No. 6, and we have transit items 
offered by Campo, Amendment No. 4.  Are there any questions on any of 
those items that we might answer? 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  Please proceed. 

Greco: Thank you.  And then Attachment B, modifications, Tahoe MPO is offering 
Modification No. 3, adding $2.5 million of Public Lands Highway funds to a 
bicycle project.  Any questions on that modification? 

Sandoval: Just one for me.  How does this interrelate with the Agenda item that we had 
earlier today?  Same one, Mr. Rodriguez? 

Rodriguez: Pedro Rodriguez.  It’s the same one, Governor. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Thank you. 

Greco: That’s I’ve got to offer at the moment.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Board members, before I accept a motion, any questions with 
regard to Agenda Item No. 11?  If there are none, the Chair will accept a 
motion for approval of the amendments and administrative modifications to 
the FFY 2012-2015 STIP. 

Wallin: Move to approve. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Savage: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Savage.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All those in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  Motion passes unanimously.  Now to Agenda Item No. 12. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

28 

 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  This presentation on the recommended financing 
option for Project NEON will be presented by Deputy Director Hoffman and 
Assistant Director for Engineering John Terry.  (Inaudible) Bill. 

Hoffman: Good morning, Governor, Transportation Board members.  I’m Bill 
Hoffman, Deputy Director for Nevada DOT.  It’s a big day for us today.  I 
mean this is Project NEON and we’re going to be recommending the 
delivery option today that we think would be most beneficial for the 
Department, Nevada taxpayers and residents of Clark County. 

 So with that, we felt probably the best place to start -- take you back to Cole 
Mortensen’s April presentation that he -- that he gave you all.  And in that 
presentation what he did was he clearly showed the three stages that we 
have been going through.  We’re currently in stage one right now, which 
really is comprised of the RFP development process.  We’ll then move into 
stage two which is really releasing the RFP and moving forward from that 
actually bringing on a design-build team to come in and build the project.  
And then, of course, stage three is the construction contract administration. 

 If we -- if we zero in on the detail of stage one, this is where you Board 
members had given us permission to move forward.  This was to look at 
Phases 1 and 3, based on the unsolicited proposal that the Department had 
received.  So we are here today.  It is June 10th.  And we are ready and able 
to make the recommendation at the end of this presentation. 

 But as I was mentioning before, we are in the RFQ, request for 
qualifications development process.  We’re also in the RFP or request for 
proposals development process.  We would very much like to go out to 
industry and we plan on doing that, going out to industry.  If we are given 
Board approval today, go out to industry as we refine and fine tune the RFP 
document itself.  So with approval today, we’d like to issue an RFQ by July.  
We’d like the submittals of qualifications to come in by September.  And 
we’d like to shortlist proposers -- proposers, excuse me, and issue a draft 
RFP. 

 Now, we have been told by industry and our advisors that our schedule is 
quite aggressive.  So I just wanted to let you all know that there might be 
minor tweaks to this schedule.  This is the best we could do at this time with 
the knowledge that we have so, you know, it’s a little bit fluid and we may 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

29 

 

have to adjust things as we move forward.  I just wanted you all to be aware 
of that. 

 Now as we move into stage two here, that’s really the RFP response and 
evaluation time period.  Okay.  And in stage one here, that was where I 
promised you all that we would not go over $3 million for our legal and 
financial advisors.  We will not be going over that amount.  However, we 
will need to amend their contracts if we get that far and move into stage two 
which, you know, I’m fully anticipating that we will.  Then we will have to 
amend their contracts so that they can continue to apply that experience and 
expertise that they’ve helped us with along the way.  It just makes sense to 
then just move forward into stage two.  Okay. 

 So after today the Transportation Board will have another three more 
approval steps or bites at the apple, if you will, to really kick the tires and 
look under the hood and make sure that we’re doing the right thing.  Of 
course we’ll continue to come back to the Transportation Board on a 
monthly basis or either through the Director’s Report or actual 
presentations.  And like we have done, we’ll come out and talk to each one 
of you individually to just keep you engaged and aware of the status of the 
project. 

 And then of course stage three, design and construction.  That’s fairly 
straightforward and self-explanatory, although we’re expecting this 
timeframe, the design and construction, actual boots on the ground, job 
creation, those sorts of activities in 2015, and that should take us out to 
2019, as well. 

 So alternative delivery models.  So the Phase 1 and 3 unsolicited proposal 
was a true DBFOM project, availability payment.  Okay.  So once the 
facility is made available to the public for use, start making payments, it’s 
very similar to a house mortgage.  Okay.  You bring in private financing to 
finance the construction work.  There’s operate and maintain or the operate 
and maintenance that you’ll be outsourcing.  So for 35 years we’ll 
outsourcing the maintenance and operations instead of doing that work 
ourselves.  Okay.  That’s sweeping, pavement overlays, bridge work, things 
like that in that corridor is now going to be outsourced to this team.  Okay.  
So, again, these three options we looked at. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

30 

 

 Design-build finance.  Unfortunately, looking at these models, these -- the 
normal finance range is between six and eight years.  And you can imagine 
trying to do a six or eight-year mortgage on your house from an affordability 
standpoint.  That just doesn’t work.  It is a tool out there that some people 
use for their infrastructure projects, but it just, from an affordability 
standpoint, just didn’t work.  And then, of course, a design-build bond that 
was our baseline or our public sector comparator.  That’s what we compared 
everything to from an affordability standpoint.  And it turns out that it’s a 
feasible alternative, quite honestly, that we really need to look at. 

John and I will go into some very serious details on how those -- how all of 
these methods compare.  But we are -- we did come to the realization that 
the design-build-finance just wasn’t going to work.  We knew that early on, 
but we wanted to vet all options.  We wanted to look at everything that we 
possibly could to make sure we did a very thorough and detailed job in 
trying to determine what was the best way to move forward. 

 So the three main analysis goals that we -- that we adhered to, I mean, 
diligently that we gleaned from the Transportation Board in those, you 
know, the June meeting, the November and April and all of the -- all of the 
discussions we’ve had about Project NEON, we gleaned these three major 
goals from the Transportation Board which we thought we should set as we 
analyzed these to give us some, you know, compass or direction as we move 
forward, because some of this stuff is very complicated, complex.  We really 
have to kind of take a step back and then look forward again.  So we wanted 
to make sure that there was the very best benefit and value to the taxpayers 
of Nevada.  I mean, that’s pretty simple and straightforward.  That’s one of 
our main goals as a department.  Every day we come to work, not just for 
Project NEON. 

 So the second one was affordable and maintains our current five-year 
average capital program.  So we heard very clearly from stakeholders and 
the Transportation Board that you can’t be dipping deeply into our capital -- 
our other projects that we’re doing across the state, we can’t eat into that 
funding stream because, you know, we have other things that we need to do.  
We need to take care of bridge and pavements.  We don’t -- we don’t want 
to put every dollar into a single project, so -- because then that way we’re 
not -- we’re really not taking care of all of the taxpayers across Nevada.  So 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

31 

 

we held that very dear and near to our heart.  And then, of course, we 
wanted -- and we’ve told the legislature, Transportation Board, you know, 
internally we want to maintain a $90 million balance in our highway fund.  
So those were the three main goals we used in moving forward in analyzing 
what would be the best delivery option. 

 So the preliminary analysis results were, as I mentioned earlier, design-
build-finance doesn’t really fit the Department’s goals.  It doesn’t fit it.  It 
eats way too much into our capital program.  There wouldn’t be a whole lot 
of other things that we’d be doing if we financed over the six to eight-year 
term.  The affordability versus cost effectiveness, of course the interest in 
finance charges are much, much lower because it’s such a shorter 
timeframe, but you can’t afford that and it goes back to why people, you 
know, move forward with 30-year mortgages on their homes, so you can 
pay the cable, gas, go to the dentist once in a while, whatever. 

 Okay.  So then availability payment estimates were considerably lower than 
anticipated.  So when we looked at the unsolicited proposal and we put, you 
know, we put some availability payment structure out there.  So we -- now 
the thing with that was we had to make some conservative estimates based 
on what it would cost us.  We’ve also had some time to really evaluate and 
refine the engineering involved with Phases 1 and 3.  And what we found, 
and Ernst and Young has come in and, I’ll tell you, has done a tremendous 
job with this analysis.  I’m very, very pleased with the work that they’ve 
done, feel very confident with the work they’ve done.  But they’ve noticed 
we have some gap -- a gap in the affordability. 

 So going back to my point, the payments that were evaluated before were 
lower than the initial run.  So there was some room to add some project, if 
we wanted to do that.  So we asked them, okay, well, what would it cost if 
you added, say, Phase 4 of Project NEON in, and we can -- and we can still 
afford that.  And John’s going to go into some great detail as to why Phase 4 
of Project NEON should be added.  But I will tell you that we have 
determined that it is affordable.  And I’ll explain why I think or the team -- 
and the team thinks that it is affordable.  Okay.  So we think we can build a 
better project for the State of Nevada. 

 So preliminary recommendations, things you guys have not heard, you all 
have not heard since Cole’s presentation or even before that.  Now, Member 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

32 

 

Fransway, I think it was you that asked me back in November, well, how are 
you going to -- how are you going to get Phase 3 right-of-way?  How are 
you going to do that?  Well, we went back -- we took your question to heart 
and went back and asked.  We have to -- we have to move forward and bond 
for Phase 3 and Phase 4 right-of-way as soon as possible.  That drives the 
schedule.  So that’s one thing we do know we need to do is bond for the 
right-of-way.  And we have talked about the actual concessionaire or the 
team going out and doing the property acquisition.  We can’t transfer 
imminent domain -- we can’t transfer that authority nor do we want to 
transfer that risk to a private entity. 

 So we’re going to remain the lead in terms of the property acquisition piece.  
And because of that, since we’re bonding, that provides the most cost 
benefit from a financing standpoint.  Okay.  So bonding for that right-of-
way is -- other than paying cash, which we don’t really have, that’s not 
affordable.  The most cost effective way to do that is to bond, so have the 
State of Nevada issue bonds to cover that cost. 

 Now, Building Phase 4, John is going to go into great detail right now on 
why that’s such a good idea.  But bang for the buck, it makes a lot of sense.  
So with that, I’ll turn that over to John. 

Terry: So some of you do and some of you don’t know what really is Phase 1 and 
3, and we’re going to talk about Phase 4 of Project NEON.  Really, Phase 1 
and 3 were what were submitted in the unsolicited proposal.  North or on the 
top of this page would be the direct connector from U.S. 95, but then 
through this stretch, really Phase 1 and 3 reconstructs the mainline.  It’s the 
basis of that proposal.  But what Phase 1 and 3 does not do is eliminate the 
weaving movements, and we’re going to talk particularly about the weaving 
movements that exist currently and would still exist between U.S. 95, you 
can call it either southbound or eastbound, coming in from Summerlin and 
out in the northwest and coming onto I-15 southbound and then a very quick 
off-ramp to Charleston Boulevard. 

 While the ramps would be reconfigured, the interchange would be 
reconfigured, that current weave would still exist with Phases 1 and 3.  
There’s some other weaves that would still exist, but that’s the critical one.  
And what Phase 4 would do is essentially install collector roads quite 
similar to what we did, braided ramps, on U.S. 95 at Rainbow -- or at 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

33 

 

Rancho at the two design-build projects, Design-Build North and Design-
Build South, where we braid some of these ramps and eliminate the main -- 
eliminate some of the weaves with bridges so that the weaves don’t happen 
on the mainline. 

 So Phase 4 adds the CD roads and the braids in the southbound direction.  
We’re only talking Phase 4 only helps southbound.  And it would eliminate 
that weave in the traffic on -- this would be the traffic coming from I-15 -- 
or U.S. 95.  It would not enter the mainline until past Charleston.  It would 
braid with both the off-ramp to Charleston as well as the off-ramp to Sahara 
before it enters I-15. 

 We ran the traffic analysis.  Again, we’ve done this since the unsolicited 
proposal and in the last few months.  It started on traffic analysis.  We used 
the year 2025, and you say why use 2025.  The original EIS was run on 
2035.  2025 is we looked at if we built Phases 1 and 3, we went through all 
this process, we spent $400 plus million, we got to the end of the 
construction, 2025 was when we felt we could construct another project.  So 
we said we won’t get to fix this until 2025, and we ran the traffic for 2025. 

And we kept this kind of simple.  Red is bad, green is -- green kind of -- or 
yellow is good -- or green is good, yellow and purple are somewhere in 
between but acceptable.  We could get into definitions of level of service 
and weaving movements, but red is really bad.  And what we found is if we 
added in -- Phase 4 would be in this area.  That significant red turns to 
green, and we feel like in 2025 we would still have a good level of service 
and good traffic. 

 Now, the question may come in, why don’t you fix northbound at the same 
time.  And we’re saying, one, northbound is far more expensive and a lot 
more right-of-way to put the weaving ramps there.  And, two, northbound 
isn’t as bad in terms of level of service through 2025 than it was in the 
southbound direction.  So what we’re saying is in the southbound direction 
it would be done.  We would essentially have our 2035 design and 
everything would be done.  There would still be some work left in the -- a 
lot of work left in the northbound direction. 

 So why are we saying the benefits of adding Phase 5 in.  With these traffic 
volumes, we know that the user costs will be very high.  In other words, the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

34 

 

two -- if you were to do a benefit cost, and we will, for Phase 4 the cost isn’t 
that high, the user costs are significant.  When you’re saving -- if you look 
down here at operations, we’re going from two and a half seconds of delay 
to sixty seconds of delay for every vehicle times tens of thousands of 
vehicles every day, the user costs are high.  But I think perhaps the other 
user costs are the accidents.  When you potentially remove 5,000 weaving 
movements, all of these weaves that occur result in a lot of accidents.  We 
found this on Design-Build South and North that when we eliminated these 
weaving movements the number of accidents went down significantly.  We 
definitely think that this would significantly reduce the traffic accidents. 

 We create more jobs.  We eliminate the weaves and we do it now.  I’ll go 
back to why do we think we can construct this.  Phase 4 is in the range of --
another advantage of Phase 4 is we get to spend most of the money on 
construction.  There’s about $15 million in utilities and right-of-way, but 
$115 million of construction.  So most of the money of Phase 4 we get to 
spend on construction, not on right-of-way.  Much of the right-of-way was 
already purchased for Phases 1 and 3.  And as Bill alluded to, why do we 
think we can afford it.  And I think it’s for a few major reasons. 

 One, we refined the scope and tightened the scope on Phases 1 and 3, 
eliminated some of the local movements that were in there originally, 
pushed those off.  We refined the cost estimates on Phases 1 and 3 as we 
advanced the design farther.  And we have found from our financial 
consultants that financing costs are lower than the kind of conservative 
assumptions we had made originally.  So we think we saved a lot of money 
on the Phases 1 and 3.  We saved money on the financing cost.  We think we 
can afford adding Phase 4 in.  But I’d like to make the main reason to put 
Phase 4 in as I don’t think we can afford not to do it.  I think those weaves 
are too dangerous to leave in the future.  We don’t want to spend this much 
money and not make that improvement. 

 The next thing is the bonding for the right-of-way.  We talked to the -- we 
kind of knew this going back, but we’ve talked to the industry.  We’ve 
talked to our advisors.  We’ve looked at what other people have done across 
the country.  We’ve looked at all the problems that we have with 
condemnations, with inverse condemnations, with the PISTOL law and we 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

35 

 

just think this is not a risk that we can put on these concessionaire teams or 
they will throw huge amounts of money at it. 

We also think that based upon a time schedule, it takes us 18 to 24 months 
to make these kinds of acquisitions working very hard.  This would be the 
controlling path.  It will probably still be the controlling path to getting all of 
this work done, but we feel we have to move forward with the Phase 3 and 
now the Phase 4 right-of-way as soon as we can.  And the only way we can 
afford to do that, because we’re already acquiring the Phase 1 right-of-way, 
is to bond to start the acquisition of the right-of-way.  And so -- and when I 
talk about right-of-way, I’m always also talking about utilities, any of which 
take relocations, some of which take new easements for the relocations. 

 Now we’re going to talk about what we’ve come up with for the delivery 
methods.  But from this phase moving forward, everything we’re talking 
about is we’re including Phase 4 and we’re bonding for the right-of-way.  
Bonding upfront for the right-of-way and including Phase 4.  And we’re 
talking about a hybrid, a design-build-finance-operate and maintain that is 
not exactly the same as what’s submitted in the unsolicited proposal.  And 
we’re doing design-build bonding as the public sector comparator and also 
as a very viable alternative for delivering the project. 

 This is a simplified display that shows what we’re doing, hopefully 
simplified.  The top one is design-build bond.  We are not doing a single 
bond sale.  There are five bond sales, the first one being for the 
right-of-way.  The next four bond sales being for the design construction 
and into the long-term maintenance.  Oh, I should point out that again 
moving forward, even though design-build bond does not have operate and 
maintain cost, because those could be done by NDOT, we have put operate 
and maintain cost in the design-build bond model because it’s only fair to 
compare apples to apples.  So those costs are in there.  You’ll have a choice, 
and we’ll talk about that choice later, of not having the operate and maintain 
element in design-build bond, but you have to have the cost in there.  Those 
costs are definitely in the hybrid. 

 So the first model we’re going to sell bonds over numerous years.  The 
highest bond sale is in the range of $200 million.  They are not consistent.  
They’re not the exact amount in every bond sale.  Below is the hybrid 
model.  Again, the original model just would have been get to 2018 or ‘19 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

36 

 

and start 35-year availability payments.  That’s not what we’re talking about 
in this hybrid model.  The hybrid model is bond for the right-of-way, same 
as the design-build bond.  But then at the completion of the project, they are 
paid a substantial completion amount that is bonded, as well as the start of 
the availability payments.  And we’re going to get to why.  So I just want to 
show these are the two methods we are talking about moving forward.  Five 
bond sales versus two bond sales and availability payments. 

 This graph is to show why we’re not advancing any longer the availability 
payments method that was shown in the unsolicited proposal.  Now, for 
fairness sake, the blue and the red are availability payments but we bonded 
the right-of-way.  We decided to bond the right-of-way and include Phase 4 
and we applied the original model which was start availability payments at 
the completion of construction for 35 years. 

 At this time I’ve just got to clarify what TIFIA is.  TIFIA is a loan program 
with the federal government that essentially buys down the loan rate for a 
much lower rate that can be used on these types of projects.  The problem 
with TIFIA is it’s a good nine-month process and we don’t know if we’re 
going to get it or not, and we’re here today trying to make the decision not 
knowing moving forward if we’re going to get it or not.  And that’s why we 
show both ways.  But the purpose of this graph is to show net present value.  
We brought everything back to net present value.  The design-build bond is 
the cheapest net present value.  And why?  Because municipal bond 
financing rates are the lowest.  And you’re making those earlier because of 
the five payments (inaudible) in five years so it has the lowest net present 
value. 

 But we felt that the availability payment model had too much of a delta to be 
considered moving forward and that’s why we came up with a hybrid 
model, which while more expensive in the net present value is not as much 
more expensive as the availability payment.  And for this reason moving 
forward we’re talking about, again, Phases 1, 3 and 4 -- Phases 1, 3 and 4 
with us buying the right-of-way upfront with those two models, no longer 
the original model, just design-build bond and design-build-operate and 
maintain what we’ll continue to call the hybrid from here on forward.  And 
with that, I believe Bill is back up. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

37 

 

Hoffman: Okay.  For the record, Bill Hoffman again.  So thank you, John.  I appreciate 
all that detail that you provided.  So if we move on to the advantages of the 
delivery methods, we have the hybrid DBFOM.  Okay.  So there’s less 
impact on the five-year capital program and that really is because we’re not 
making that construction completion payment, that $200 million payment, 
nor are we starting to pay availability payments for the balance of what 
we’re financing over that 35 period until the end of construction.  So that 
really frees up some room, some space to work on our capital program, look 
at pavements, bridges, allow the highway fund to build.  And we -- from a 
flexibility standpoint it makes a lot of sense to wait until the construction is 
complete to start bonding for the $200 million piece and then do the, you 
know, the payments -- the payments on the loan. 

 And it is consistent with a P3 or 3P delivery.  Every presentation you’ve had 
from us has always been the P3 delivery model, so there’s consistency with 
what we’ve talking about all along.  The design-build bond, it’s the lowest 
present value cost, but then again if you didn’t finance anything that would 
always be the lowest net present value.  What, really, we’re focusing on is 
the affordability piece, what can we afford on the front end with the 
economic climate in Nevada, and the jobs we’re trying to build in the 
construction industry.  We’re trying to build that back up.  We can do more 
for labor and construction jobs, I believe, with the hybrid DBFOM.  I truly 
believe that, although we are showing the design-build bond is lower net 
present value. 

 Design-build has been used before successfully by NDOT.  NDOT has not -
- we have not brought in private financers on this scale nor have we 
outsourced operations and maintenance, you know, for large wide areas on 
our -- on our roadways.  It’s always kind of been project related.  So this 
would be new.  This would be a new situation, but I firmly believe that with 
those that we’ve hired, Ernst & Young and Nossaman CH2M Hill, I feel 
extremely comfortable with the advice that they’ve given us so far and the 
direction they’ve provided.  I can honestly and truly say that. 

 So we wanted to -- wanted to bring this back.  This is the Sisco chart.  It’s 
really the affordability chart.  And this was something that the 
Transportation Board asked for, and this was the graph that I brought before 
the Board back in November.  And really what it is, is it just -- here are the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

38 

 

revenues -- highway fund revenues and below are the expenditures.  And 
really -- and this was the table prepared for Phases 1 and 3 of the unsolicited 
proposal.  Okay.  So you can see here the availability payments that would 
kick in there.  And, really, I just wanted to show the Transportation Board 
that we used these same tables with the DBFOM hybrid model and we also 
used these tables for the design-build bond -- design-build bond and all of 
the other availability payments scenarios that were run holding this at $90 
million, that was one of the project goals, and then see -- here’s the capital 
program.  So as you hold this at $90, based on the revenues and 
expenditures, then this capital -- you can look at the capital program.  And 
that’s -- I’ve got some charts that will show that to you.  So we can afford 
on the front end -- on the front end here, we can afford to do more in our 
capital program with the DBFOM delivery model.  I just wanted to let you 
know that we did use that information. 

 So when John was talking about net present values, this is what we’re 
talking about.  So net present value, here’s the design-build bond, Phases 1, 
3 and 4, the hybrid.  That’s the $200 million bond.  We would take out -- as 
a construction completion, helps buy down that long-term financing over the 
35-year period that would be the availability payment.  And then as John 
mentioned we have, I would say, a 50/50 shot -- maybe a little bit better than 
50/50 shot at getting a TIFIA loan.  MAP-21 has increased the amount that’s 
available to states with the TIFIA loan program.  But with all of that fanfare 
and marketing that went with it, of course, they’re getting bombarded with 
applications, as well, from other states with their projects that they want to 
do as to, you know, bring in TIFIA loans to help pay that off. 

 So I just want to let you know there is a -- there is -- there is a risk there in 
not getting the TIFIA loan.  Our advisors are helping us.  You can see it’s 13 
percent more expensive than the design-build bond, but we think we can do 
things with that construction completion bond payment to try to offset this 
13 percent more expensive.  So once again, I can’t stress this enough, it is 
the cheapest net present value.  What we need to look at is jobs now and the 
amount of money that we’re paying over the long-term.  Really, it’s jobs 
now and affordability, really.  And this chart explains exactly what I’m 
talking about. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

39 

 

 So here’s our current debt service, this gray area here.  And these are all the 
scenarios added to our debt service payments already.  And as you can see 
here, the dashed line -- the black dashed line is the -- is the addition of 
Project NEON if we went with design-build bond.  And you can see on the 
front end, so in these years here from 2014 out to about 2020, 2021 this is -- 
this is the difference that we’re talking about, because the yellow dashed 
line is the hybrid that we’re talking about.  And these are -- these are all end 
costs.  Okay.  The difference between the dash and the solid are just -- 
we’ve added in, you know, consultant cost, right-of-way cost.  We’ve added 
all those additional costs in.  But what I would look at, and the point that I 
was trying to make before, there’s a lot more affordability.  So really what 
you have is this gap -- you’re paying -- you’d be paying more on the front 
end for Project NEON if you bond. 

 Now, of course, it’s cheaper to do that, but you’re paying off what you owe 
sooner.  Okay.  Now, with NEON this allows economic recovery.  It allows 
jobs throughout the state plus it allows jobs between 4,500 and 5,000, I 
would think, jobs for this project.  And we’re using numbers based on 
Federal Highway Administration, other national numbers.  But we’re 
looking at 4,500 to 5,000 jobs on NEON, plus we can still go out, do 
pavements, bridges in our capital program based on that cost difference. 

 Now, here’s the thing though.  Here’s bonding.  Now, here’s the availability 
payment.  The green line is the availability payment on the unsolicited 
proposal, just as a comparison.  That was just Phases 1 and 3.  Okay.  Now 
we have design-build bond, Phases 1, 3 and 4, and anywhere you have a gap 
between the yellow line and the black line where the black line is on top, 
you’re going to be paying more at that specific time period that’s going to 
take away from your capital program.  Okay.  So it ekes out here.  The 
tradeoff is on the back end.  Okay.  The tradeoff is back here.  But you look 
at the back end from an affordability standpoint, that’s where our debt 
service out in 2022 drops off a cliff and we can -- we can actually even 
better afford that on the back end of our financing scenario or a timeframe. 

 So anyway, any questions on this chart?  No?  Okay.  So I mentioned the 
TIFIA risk.  It’s probably about a nine-month process.  We’re deciding the 
delivery option today.  We just have to, based on the project schedule.  It 
may be a 6 percent increase.  That’s 6 added to 7, so that’s 13.  So we’re 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

40 

 

talking about that 13 percent.  So the 6 percent is additional to the net 
present value.  DBFOM requires 30-year operate and maintain.  Design-
build bond does not.  So we will still be in charge of operating and 
maintaining that corridor unlike in the DBFOM as I mentioned several times 
before that that work would be outsourced.  DBFO teams -- DBFOM, 
excuse me, teams would be led by the financial firm, so this -- we did have 
this topic brought up about who’s leading the project.  Is it the financial 
team, the concessionaire or is the -- is the prime contractor actually leading, 
you know, the work?  Who has control over who or is that even an issue? 

 And it’s a serious concern that we’ve come back and talked to our advisors 
about and we’re looking at trying to structure the contract to try to take, you 
know, try to at least balance the playing field between the concessionaire 
and the general contractor.  We just want a nice, smooth fluid project where 
we don’t have, you know, any conflicts that arise.  But we’re new to this, so, 
you know, I don’t -- I don’t have a definitive answer for you all in terms of 
who’s the lead on this.  DBFOM hybrid is still a P3 and a design-build bond 
would not be a P3.  So, again, that’s that consistency from the day we 
walked in front of you about NEON.  If it was design-build bond, that would 
not be a public-private partnership project. 

 So recommendations for approval, this is my last slide.  So, again, John and 
I have been talking about bond for right-of-way right -- bond for 
right-of-way right away.  I guess -- I guess I -- you could say that.  Bond for 
right-of-way right away.  Earlier acquisition means earlier construction.  
Member Fransway, you picked up on that, you know, from day one, so 
we’ve been chasing that down, looking at the schedule -- right-of-way 
schedule.  Imminent domain risk, I talked about that before.  You don’t want 
a third party trying to (inaudible) your right-of-way.  Most cost effective 
financing, there’s no question about that unless you have cash to pay for 
right-of-way and we don’t.  So that’s kind of a no-brainer.  Build Phase 4, 
John did a great job talking about why we would want to do that.  We do 
have the gap or that room that we can afford Phase 4. 

And finally, our recommendation for approval to the Board would be the use 
of hybrid DBFOM delivery method with a bonded construction completion 
payment.  Well, and that -- you know, less impact on the five-year capital 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

41 

 

program, innovative project delivery consistent with 3P unsolicited 
proposal. 

 So with that, we are recommending to the Board to move forward with the 
hybrid DBFOM delivery method for Phases 1, 3 and 4 of Project NEON.  
And, Dennis, do I need to add anything else?  I’m looking at our legal -- is 
that -- is that good? 

Gallagher: I think you’ve accurately stated the recommendation from staff to the Board. 

Hoffman: Okay.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: And, Governor, if I could add a few comments.  Definitely, we’re looking at 
affordability of the design-build-finance-operate and maintain option 
because it gives us a little bit more money available either to leave in the 
highway fund or to put to work right away for other projects across the state.  
We’re looking at that as a huge benefit to create jobs in the near term, and 
it’s affordable as far as financing.  We do have to pay that off over a longer 
term, but it makes it affordable in the near term. 

 As far as the TIFIA risk, there are a significant amount of letters of interest 
that have been submitted to the USDOT for TIFIA program.  And MAP-21 
provided $750 million in 2013 and $1 billion in 2014.  So even with Nevada 
DOT’s request, it’s still a significant amount of requests.  But in terms of 
some of the other projects, they’re huge projects.  I don’t know how much 
TIFIA versus availability of other funds for their projects, but there’s about 
$41 billion of letters of interest that have been submitted through 29 
applications -- or letters of interest from other agencies.  And some of them 
are not state DOTs.  Some are cities or transportation authorities across the 
nation. 

 So there is a risk there, but again it relates back to the affordability of the 
design-build-finance-operate and maintain option.  They’ve given us some 
extra cushion on that near term having some money available either to put 
towards other projects or to help build up the highway fund.  Obviously, we 
would prefer to put it towards other projects and create jobs in our state. 

Sandoval: When you talk a lot about creating jobs, are these going to be Nevada jobs, 
Nevada workers? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

42 

 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor.  Typically, the teams that we’ve seen are being formed are 
involving Nevada contractors.  There is always that issue of somebody -- the 
risk of somebody bringing in someone from out of state, but for the most 
part we’ve seen a lot of the engineering side and the construction side being 
from Nevada firms. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  We’ll start with Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And I really appreciate this whole presentation.  It’s 
made things clearer to me and I appreciate that.  Did I hear you right, Mr. 
Director, that there -- in MAP there are $1 billion set aside for TIFIA and 
that there is $40 plus billion in applications for that $1 billion? 

Malfabon: In response, there is -- the project costs related to the letters of interest is 
over $41 billion, but it doesn’t say that… 

Fransway: Oh. 

Malfabon: …the agencies that had submitted are asking for the entire $41 billion. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Malfabon: So they have some funding.  Obviously, TIFIA can only go up to 49 percent 
of the funding for a project in total.  So it’s -- there’s a portion that’s on the 
project costs that is being funded by that agency that submitted.  But I don’t 
know if you have any other information, but it is a significant program.  $1 
billion was only for fiscal year ‘14, and $750 million in the current fiscal 
year. 

Boocke: Governor, Board members, for the record, it’s Corey Boocke with the 
Nossaman Firm.  Just to clarify on the Director’s comments.  The way the 
TIFIA program works, the $750 million or this $1 billion is what is 
allocated for what’s called the credit subsidy, which the way these loans are 
structured, the Office of Management and Budget comes up with a score, 
basically how risky do they perceive the loan and that is what the agency 
has to pay or use for that loan.  So rough justice, that $1 billion will support 
about $10 billion worth of loans.  So it still does not make up the $40 
billion, which is already being sought, but it is not just a $1 billion.  It’ll 
support much more than that. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

43 

 

Parker: Hi.  For the record, Mike Parker with Ernst & Young Infrastructure 
Advisors.  And just to elaborate on Corey’s statements, the way the program 
works is that there is a third of the project cost can -- or between 49 and -- at 
this point, the TIFIA program has made no loans at 49 percent, so we’re 
seeing a third, roughly, of project costs are funded through TIFIA loans.  
The federal subsidy is about 10 percent of the loan cost.  So working 
backwards, if you have $1 billion in the second year of MAP-21 that funds 
about $10 billion of loans which correlates with $30 billion of projects.  So 
if you look at the two years combined we have 17.5 -- sorry, $1.75 billion 
and you assume some program cost.  You’re going to see around $16 billion 
of loans and $48 billion of projects to be supported out of that. 

 In addition, the way -- there’s no certainty as to how Congress will act in the 
future, but what we’ve seen with transportation bills recently is that there’s 
continuing resolutions.  And so it’s quite common that these programs will 
continue unless we have full reauthorization of transportation funding.  And 
so you would expect to see if there was simply a continuance of the -- of the 
prior MAP-21 funding levels $1 billion in the following year as well.  So it’s 
a fairly robust availability. 

Fransway: Well, I still have another question, Governor, I’d like to… 

Hoffman: Thank you, Michael.  Thank you, Corey. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Hoffman: Member Fransway, yes, sir. 

Fransway: Yeah.  What determines the availability payment amount?  And if we had 
the opportunity, if the funding was there, could we pay more to pay down 
the principal of a bond? 

Hoffman: That’s a good question. 

Fransway: In other words… 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm. 

Fransway: …in other words, could we retire this debt early? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

44 

 

Hoffman: Yes, you could retire the debt early if that was what the Director wanted to 
do.  So remember -- and for the record, Bill Hoffman.  Remember the chart 
that I showed and we held the highway fund cash balance, we held that at 
$90 million and then we looked at what would happen to our capital 
program.  If Rudy wanted to, or the future Director in those years wanted to 
put more money into paying down their debt, you know, double up on your 
interest or double up on your principal -- I’m not sure exactly how it works 
with P3s, but I would think that we would have that opportunity to do that. 

Fransway: Okay.  And we would do everything we could to preserve that $90 million.  
I’m saying… 

Sandoval: Okay.  Before we -- Tom, before (inaudible) I see the accountant moving 
around. 

Malfabon: (Inaudible) one of the things that we have to look at, Governor and Board 
members, is, is there a penalty for early payment.  And I know that it came 
up during the reissuance of bonds to pay off, basically renegotiate because 
of lower interest rates when Assistant Director for Administration Scott 
Sisco was successful in getting some savings on that.  He had to look at 
whether there was a penalty on early payment of the bond.  So we would 
have to look at those bonds that are going to be paid off for the future years 
and see what kind of structure that they had in those agreements.  Is 
accountant still wiggling? 

Hoffman: Are you -- Tom, are you good? 

Fransway: Well, I… 

Sandoval: I just want to make sure we’re clear for the record, so I would like to hear… 

Hoffman: Okay. 

Sandoval: …from the accountant. 

Hoffman: Okay.  Sure. 

Parker: For the record, I’m not an accountant.  Ernst & Young is a significant 
accounting firm, but our role is also on the consulting side.  So I want to 
make sure I haven’t violated any professional standards in representing that.  
So for the record, there’s different components in this hybrid that you’re 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

45 

 

talking about, right.  You have the right-of-way bonds and the completion 
payment bonds which will be issued by the state, and then you have these 
contractual obligations to make availability payments.  And the project will 
be financed in part by the private partner going out and borrowing against 
those future availability payments itself and investing equity. 

 So with respect to the right-of-way bonds and the completion payment 
bonds, the state would enjoy all the rights that it has in its normal bond 
program which may include a penalty for early repayment or other issues 
that arise, but that would be consistent with your normal bonding program. 

 With respect to the P3 contract, it’s not simply a financing vehicle.  One of 
the reasons these are called availability payments is that in the event that the 
private partners’ performance is lacking either the physical infrastructure is 
not there or the routine availability of the project is not there, payments can 
be curtailed or stopped.  But in return for taking that risk they’ve gone out 
and locked in financing and made an investment.  So it’s possible to 
terminate the contract, and you would always have that right to terminate for 
convenience.  However, you would, at that time, have to follow a formula 
that left them not worse off for having made that investment, and that 
allowed them to retire the debt that they had undertaken. 

 And so while those rights of termination would exist, sort of payments on 
the margin and say, hey, could we -- you could always renegotiate, but you 
wouldn’t just be able like with a normal mortgage that you might have to 
just submit a double payment sometime.  So the convenience would be there 
with your bonds; with the P3 contract it would likely involve reopening or 
terminating. 

Wallin: Governor, while he’s still… 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Thank you, Governor.  I have a question for you, Mark, Ernst & Young… 

Hoffman: Michael. 

Wallin: …or Michael.  Sorry. 

Parker: Michael. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

46 

 

Wallin: Parker.  Okay.  So -- all right.  So the availability payments, we have to 
make those for 35 years?  Okay.  Just so we’re all clear on that. 

Parker: Yes. 

Wallin: All right.  And I understand the bonds, yes, we can refinance -- you know, 
we can pay those off early or refinance them like we’ve been doing some 
already here.  Now, you mentioned on the TIFIA that it was -- there’s 49 
percent financing, but you’ve never seen that.  That hasn’t happened; is that 
correct? 

Parker: So -- right.  When the private partner goes out to -- the state’s committed to 
make these availability payments as well as to make that lump sum payment 
at the end of construction, so the private partner still needs to pay the 
contractors to do the work… 

Wallin: Right. 

Parker: …during the construction period.  So it has to go out and arrange financing.  
One of the sources of financing that it can go to is this TIFIA program.  And 
it allows the private partner to borrow at the federal government’s long-term 
cost of borrowing, so roughly 3 percent right now.  So it’s very favorable to 
the state from that standpoint in that you transfer the risk for the delivery 
and operations of the project and yet the private partner for that portion of 
its financing can get very cheap financing.  Only right now, MAP-21 raised 
the maximum amount of the private partners financing of the project cost 
that can be financed to 49 percent of what they call federal highways 
eligible project cost, which is a specific calculation. 

 In practice and historically, the legislation only provided for a third of the 
eligible project costs to be financed… 

Wallin: Okay. 

Parker: …and that’s typically what they’ve been doing. 

Wallin: So in the example that we had in the numbers that they had in the present 
value, you used one-third -- if we have TIFIA it’s one -- you used one-third 
in your… 

Parker: So it’s one-third of the… 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

47 

 

Wallin: Right.  Of those… 

Parker: …eligible project costs which is different than one-third of the private 
partner’s cost.  Your right-of-way even gets investment and actually counts 
towards the pie that’s then split up. 

Wallin: Okay. 

Parker: So part of it’s (inaudible) federal highway rules as to what is there.  But, 
yes, the one in the middle would include the private partner borrowing a 
TIFIA loan. 

Wallin: At about a third, you’re saying? 

Parker: A third of the eligible project costs, yes. 

Wallin: Okay.  So if they could come out and get 49 percent going forward then that 
would also reduce down our net present value cost? 

Parker: Yes.  I think by being creative about how you look at your right-of-way and 
other expenditures that are happening outside of the project, in practice 
they’ll probably be borrowing a bit more than a third of their costs, but it… 

Wallin: Okay. 

Parker: …will be of the whole pie a third. 

Wallin: Okay, great.  Thank you. 

Parker: Sure. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Sorry, Governor.  I’m not sure that I fully understand how the 33 percent 
DMV cap affects this funding mechanism. 

Hoffman: Unless you want to, Rudy.  Do you want that? 

Malfabon: You’re talking about the increase in the DMV cap is what has been 
implemented on the current -- the next biennium’s budget, this -- for the 
next two state fiscal years.  That amounts to about $26 million in fiscal year 
‘15.  So we -- what we wrote on the materials was that it anticipates that that 
revenue will come back to the Department of Transportation in subsequent 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

48 

 

fiscal years after fiscal year ‘15.  We believe that the sales tax over several 
consecutive months is showing an improving economy in Nevada.  Our fuel 
tax revenues are pretty flat.  But we anticipate that the economy will be such 
that in our state that we will not have to temporarily increase the DMV’s 
cap, at least in the Governor’s recommended budget to the legislature in the 
next biennium.  So we are counting on that revenue coming back to the 
highway fund. 

Fransway: Okay.  And that was $26 million? 

Malfabon: Yes, in fiscal year ‘15. 

Fransway: And were there ideas to use that $26 million toward the NEON Project? 

Malfabon: In the financial charts, the $26 million is going back.  It’s assumed that it’s 
going back in the highway fund in fiscal year ‘16 and forward -- going 
forward, so… 

Fransway: Okay.  So… 

Malfabon: …that money is already indicated in those tables. 

Fransway: In the general fund? 

Malfabon: In the -- in the highway fund. 

Fransway: Right.  Okay.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: So in other words, the DMV cap would go back down to 22 percent and that 
$26 million would be going into the -- be in the highway fund because the 
DMV would getting that -- be getting the $26 million out of the general 
fund.  And that was the assumption in the -- in the tables. 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm.  That’s correct. 

Malfabon: The other portion, the governmental services tax, is not addressed in those 
tables, because that was revenue that was never coming to the highway fund 
in the first place.  That was created expressly for the general fund, so it was 
money that the Department of Transportation never received before.  So if 
that does get addressed in the future and it goes in the highway fund, that 
would be on top of those revenue tables. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

49 

 

Sandoval: Other questions?  And these amounts, are they all end cost for 1, 3 and 4? 

Hoffman: I believe they are.  John? 

Terry: Again, these are present value costs.  1, 3 and 4 with an assumption of 
long-term operation and maintenance even applied to the design-build bond 
even though we wouldn’t have to do that.  So it is a comparison.  There are, 
again, the hybrid -- there are a lot of assumptions as to what we’ll get to that 
7 percent.  It could be a little bit higher than that, but depending on some of 
these financing issues.  But we tried to bring net present value costs, they 
aren’t necessarily constructions costs, that includes not the Phase 1 
right-of-way, but the Phase 3 and 4 right-of-way, Phases 1, 3 and 4 
construction, operation and maintenance and then their design and other 
things that are built into the contract, and financing. 

Sandoval: Who bears litigation risk if something goes wrong with construction? 

Hoffman: Well, we’ve got -- we’ve got our legal expert, Corey Boocke from 
Nossaman. 

Boocke: Now, I’m neither an accountant, but I am an attorney.  So the question in 
terms of -- from a construction standpoint, construction risk, design risk and 
operations and maintenance risk, a significant portion of that risk is 
transferred over to the concessionaire.  In fact, for those agencies that pursue 
public-private partnerships, that’s viewed as one of the real benefits, is to 
get out of some of the finger pointing that you might have between 
designers, the engineers and the contractors much less the operation and 
maintenance.  It is not a full risk shift.  There will be some retained risks, 
but if you look at your conventional program of construction or even the 
design-build projects you’ve done north, south and up on the I-80 it will be a 
much more significant risk shift than what you’ve seen in those projects. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  I, too, am concerned about the litigation because we 
want to put the dollars to the construction.  And we’ve seen in the past with 
the Department some concerns regarding litigation.  We want everybody 
held accountable.  But to get into the meat and potatoes of this project, I 
want to thank Mr. Hoffman and Mr. Terry and Mr. Mortensen for taking the 
time to come over to my office and spend several hours.  We rolled up our 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

50 

 

sleeves.  We had a good roundtable discussion back and forth, back and 
forth.  And, Rudy, your team has done a very solid, diligent project and 
provided the information to the individual Board members on an individual 
basis, let me make that clear, to inform us of all the options. 

 And nothing is a perfect world.  Nothing is a perfect world and we fight and 
get better every day at what we do.  And I know the states recovering as 
well as the national basis.  But I believe in breaking it down simply the jobs 
now and affording what we can afford now drives the P3 partnership and the 
hybrid design finance option.  It’s important to keep the capital program 
maintaining those dollars for the other areas of the state, because they need 
to recover as well.  But I really believe that the diligence has been done even 
though it’s not a perfect world, but we need to move forward.  Thank you, 
Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Martin. 

Martin: Thank you, Governor.  I echo Member Savage’s comments about what staff 
did (inaudible) down in my office (inaudible) for a couple hours and 
reviewed the (inaudible) of the project.  And I’m deeply (inaudible) a great 
deal of understanding.  And then for the first time I figured -- I found out 
what TIFIA is.  And that proved to be a possible bonus which is a good 
thing for the State of Nevada. 

 I did have a couple of clarifying questions on your -- on your bonding for 
the right-of-ways.  Is it the intent of -- is it the intent of NDOT to provide to 
the concessionaire a clear set of right-of-ways prior to awarding the contract 
and prior to the RFP?  Is that your intent? 

Hoffman: You got that, John? 

Terry: Again, John Terry, Assistant Director of Engineering, for the record.  Some 
of that needs to be worked out.  I mean, yes, it is our intent to provide a clear 
right-of-way.  It is our intent to relocate the utilities that clearly need to be 
relocated.  But it wouldn’t be fair to say that every utility would be relocated 
and perhaps every parcel, if we felt that there was some innovation that 
could be achieved by avoiding some of these parcels.  But for the most part 
the answer to your question is yes, we want to clear the right-of-way.  But in 
terms of the utilities, we are really going to look at the major utilities one by 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

51 

 

one and decide if that is a risk we want to transfer or relocate in advance.  
Because just like in design-build you don’t have enough design to know 100 
percent for sure whether that utility needs to be relocated and exactly where.  
So for the most part yes, but I wouldn’t say 100 percent. 

Martin: Okay.  And as a follow-up question, I didn’t think about when you all were 
at my office.  With the TIFIA funds possibly coming into this thing, if all of 
this money is primarily Nevada generated, where does that put the 5 percent 
rule on the -- on the proposals and -- number one?  And number two, does 
the TIFIA funds coming in pollute that 5 percent rule on the proposals? 

Terry: If you are talking about the bitter preference 5 percent… 

Martin: Yes, sir. 

Terry: …we have a federalized project.  We did a -- spent federal money on 
right-of-way.  We spent federal money on all kinds of things and it’s a 
federal project.  I do not believe that we can go with the bitter preference 
because there is federal money in this job, regardless of which way we go. 

Martin: I guess I was confused because I thought the bonds were interior to the State 
of Nevada. 

Terry: But we may pay back those bonds with federal funds. 

Martin: Oh, I see.  Okay.  With federal funds you receive back from gas tax, et 
cetera. 

Terry: Yes, sir. 

Martin: Okay.  Understood.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any other questions? 

Savage: I have. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: A couple more items.  Just to add, I think it’s vitally important that the 
Nevada people get to work, and everybody realizes that.  But I think we 
need to go above and beyond to keep the Nevada people busy.  It’s -- we’ve 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

52 

 

seen other arenas where that hasn’t happened, and I think everybody needs 
to understand that’s vitally important. 

 And the last comment I have, Governor, is that the CH2M Hill and 
Nossaman and Ernst & Young, when we draw up the RFP, I would really 
like to see the contract to drive the bus.  I think it’s important and I know, 
Mr. Hoffman and Mr. Terry, we spoke about that in my office.  But it’s a 
major, major construction project along with a major finance project.  But 
the last thing we need is finger pointing within the huddle amongst the 
contractor and the financer, because the construction schedule and the 
impact to the citizens, the contractor understands those issues. And that’s all 
I have to say.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Martin. 

Martin: Yes, sir.  Thank you.  I echo again Member Savage’s concerns.  When 
Mr. Hoffman explained that to me about the -- about the financing 
(inaudible) this is a huge (inaudible).  And I believe that the -- while the 
financing is certainly important, because without it the construction doesn’t 
get done; however, the logistics that goes into this thing can’t be run by a 
financial institution someplace and getting the project done.  And I have 
great concerns about having a financial institution run a multi -- 
half-a-billion dollar project in the middle of my town and not have a 
contractor that is (inaudible) qualified actually run the bus or running the 
schedule (inaudible).  That’s a major concern (inaudible).  Thank you. 

Cortez Masto: Governor? 

Sandoval: Yes, Madam Attorney General. 

Cortez Masto: Thank you.  First of all, let me just say thank you to NDOT and the team for 
coming to talk with me.  However, with that said, I am not comfortable in 
moving forward today.  I still have a lot of questions on the financial impact 
and how we’re going to pay for it.  And so from my perspective, I appreciate 
the conversation today.  I think this is an important project.  I agree with 
about -- the comments by some of the Board members about putting people 
back to work in the State of Nevada.  But from my perspective, I just need 
more time to work with NDOT staff to ask them questions about some of 
the financing, how we’re going to pay for this long-term, and some of the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

53 

 

additional questions I have.  And I just, at this point in time, I’m not 
comfortable in supporting moving forward.  And so my -- I will not be 
doing so. 

 But with that said, in the future if I’m still on this Board, and quite frankly I 
don’t even know when my time is up on the Board, I will follow up with 
NDOT staff regarding this.  But I have too many questions about the 
numbers and the moving numbers and actually who the -- who our private 
partners potentially might be, how is that different than the concessionaire, 
what happens if the TIFIA programs don’t continue, and is the private 
partner the one that gets the authority to reach out to get the loans from the 
TIFIA program or is that a combination of us.  And there’s just too many 
open questions that I have that I need answered.  So I just wanted to make 
that clear and put that on the record.  Thanks, Governor. 

Sandoval: Well, now is the time.  I mean, we have everybody in the room right here to 
answer all those questions.  So I’m not sure if anybody was taking copious 
notes, but… 

Cortez Masto: Well, if you want to take the time, I’m happy to.  So let’s start at the very 
beginning then, because I have a question about the charts that I have in 
front of me and I think they are in front of you.  The Project NEON for 
budget presentation, which is a breakdown of the numbers, and then we 
have two other charts that are similar that the matrix.  That’s the hybrid, 
Phases 1, 2, 3 and 4 and the design-build 1, 2, 3 and 4.  Can you explain to 
me the difference between the four budget presentation and the other two, 
particularly when it comes to the total revenue and receipts?  Because I will 
tell you, just looking at -- my thought on the total revenue and receipts 
numbers should be the same for all three charts, but they’re not.  So I don’t 
quite understand why that’s not the case. 

 So, for instance, if you just look at the beginning balance for fiscal year 
2015, the estimated on the four budget presentation I have $81,000, and then 
on the hybrid DBFOM/TIFIA it’s $99,000, and then on the doing business 
Phases 1, 3 and 4 it is 100 -- excuse me, $109 million.  They were all 
million.  So I’m not quite sure how the revenue changes and why it’s 
changing.  To me that should be a consistent figure.  But if you look at each 
one of these charts, they’re constantly changing.  And so I don’t know why 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

54 

 

that is happening and why it’s -- and that would be my first question, just to 
get -- make sure I’m comparing apples to apples. 

Terry: Again, John Terry, for the record.  We did brief the various Board members 
and we struggled with this issue of how to show the program moving 
forward.  And frankly it was after we met with the Attorney General that we 
decided to fix the bottom line at $90 million.  And before that we had 
moved most of the capital program as well as the highway fund balance to 
kind of predict what we would do in the future.  We have since then run 
analysis where I believe it was starting in ‘15, we simply fixed the highway 
fund balance at $90 million, which showed the NDOT capital program 
adjusting based on the various scenarios. 

 And what we found was especially in the years from, I believe it was ‘14 
through ‘19 in a five-year period, there is a delta of $90 million that is 
available to NDOT with the two Phase 1, 3 and 4 scenarios.  So basically 
when you held the $90 million -- that $90 million would be the amount we 
would hold in the highway fund, the Director would have, and this Board 
would have cumulative over a five-year period $90 million more to allocate 
to the NDOT capital program.  And the charts we ran when we held the $90 
million showed that. 

Malfabon: John… 

Terry: Go ahead. 

Malfabon: …just to clarify, the chart that you’re showing is the original chart that… 

Terry: Yes. 

Malfabon: …former Assistant Director… 

Terry: Yes. 

Malfabon: …Scott Sisco presented to the Board.  So that’s why we are showing that 
this is what was presented before and what we changed, bottom line was if 
we wanted to keep the highway fund balance at $90 million, how did it 
affect -- let that affect the rest of the capital program to see the numbers.  
And we saw that it didn’t have a detrimental effect if we kept the $90 
million balance in the highway fund, which is one of our key goals. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

55 

 

Terry: And maybe, just to be clear, I mean, we felt as though the design-build 
bond, the public sector method, we could still fund the highway program.  
We did not reduce it so much and -- but we did get total bond payments up 
in the range of $95 million a year, which if you look on the far left column 
of the one that was just up there -- go back to the one we were just at.  In the 
last five years, we have lived with bond payments in the range of $84.5 
million and we’ve survived and we’ve delivered our program. 

 But if you went to the design-build bond, your peak of bonding, go to that 
next chart, gets up there, just the bonds are up above $95 million, and if you 
add in other NEON costs, it gets close to $100 million.  Yes, we would have 
a slightly reduced capital program in those periods of ‘17, ‘18 and ‘19 
because of that, because we have never had, in recent history, total bond or 
financing payments of that range.  But we felt we could still deliver most of 
the program.  I don’t know if I’ve answered your question with those two, 
but… 

Cortez Masto: And, no, you haven’t.  So can I just ask you some specific questions?  And I 
appreciate the charts.  Believe me.  I’m just a linear thinker and I just need 
to look at the numbers.  So can I ask you a question just very quickly then?  
So, for instance, that first matrix that you put on there, four budget 
presentation, the Project NEON cash flow analysis… 

Terry: Yes. 

Cortez Masto: …that -- okay.  That’s what you gave to us.  Is that the presentation from 
the -- that you gave us through the original presentation, the original 
numbers, or are they adjusted for this presentation? 

Terry: This is the same presentation and everything at the bottom is the same as 
was done in November, but our budget people adjusted the remaining 
highway balance and I believe the revenues received to adjust for what 
really happened in the first half of 2013.  But other than… 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  So… 

Terry: …just making those adjustments, it’s the same thing as November. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  So that was my first question.  So that chart compared to the other 
two that you have for the Phases 1, 2 and 3, that’s why if you look at fiscal 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

56 

 

year 2013, you have the total revenue receipts of $988 million, but on those 
two it’s $941 -- $941 million; is that correct? 

Terry: I believe so, yes. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  So what you’re telling me is they’ve been adjusted.  These new 
charts for Phases 1, 3 and 4 have been adjusted from that one.  And 
they’re -- I get it.  They’re estimates, but they’ve changed over the course of 
the year.  So that’s what I needed to know. 

Terry: Yes. 

Cortez Masto: And I appreciate that.  Thank you.  So let me ask you this then; the -- talk to 
me about actually -- if we are going to go out with this hybrid, it’s a 
funding -- it’s part of bonding.  It’s part of having a private partner 
financier; is that right? 

Terry: Yes. 

Cortez Masto: And how do we pick that private partner or how -- who is that private 
partner? 

Terry: Okay.  We would go through -- again, we got an unsolicited proposal.  We 
feel the design-build-finance-operate and maintain, even though it’s this 
hybrid, it’s still following that process.  So we would put out, based on the 
schedule that Bill showed early in the presentation an RFP and we would go 
through a whole selection process.  That selection process would be sort of 
like what we do for design-build, but it has the finance, operate and maintain 
in there.  We fully expect we would get three or more teams submit and we 
would go through a whole selection process with us going to the Board in 
August and then again in October to select that team. 

 The next time we go to the Board, which would be in February, would really 
be the final RFP.  And the final RFP is really the contracts that they’re going 
to sign eventually, and that would be in February.  But we fully expect a 
competitive process to select this team. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  And I appreciate that, but it didn’t answer my question.  I’m asking if 
we’re going out for financing in a combination of bonding to pay for this, 
and what I’m hearing is that there’s a private partner that’s going to help 
fund this as well… 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

57 

 

Terry: Yes. 

Cortez Masto: …that private partner is what, it’s a financial institution, it’s a contractor?  
Who is that private partner? 

Terry: And that goes back to the discussion we had earlier that we fully expect that 
if we do this method the financial firms, some of which may be from outside 
the country, will be either the major partner or one of the major partners on 
this team because they are presenting the financing.  Their financing is in 
the range of half or more of the total financing.  The only bonds we would 
sell almost immediately would be for the Phases 1 and 4 right-of-way.  The 
other bonds would be sold later.  The availability payments while they 
wouldn’t come into play until 2018 or ‘19, we would sign the contract that 
would commit this department to those availability payments when we 
signed the contract with the successful team. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  So let me -- let me try another venue to answer my question.  All of 
the funding for this project is through bonding; is that correct? 

Hoffman: No.  No. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  How do we get -- okay.  If it’s not bonding, how are we getting the 
other funds to pay for this? 

Hoffman: You have -- what we intend on doing is the State of Nevada, on behalf of the 
Department of Transportation will be issuing bonds for approximately $300 
million.  Is that about right? 

Unidentified Male: Yes, 300. 

Hoffman: So we will own that financial piece.  We will be in the driver’s seat for that.  
The contractor -- the prime contractor, the subs, the design teams will team 
up with a financier or a concessionaire and they will -- they will have to 
come up with funding and financing to pay the contractor during 
construction and then we pay the financier or the concessionaire over a 
35-year period, which included operating and maintaining a segment of 
freeway. 

Cortez Masto: So what is the total cost that you anticipate for this Project NEON?  If the 
bonding is $300 million, what’s the rest of it? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

58 

 

Hoffman: The rest of it is approximately $250 million to $300 million. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  And that 250… 

Hoffman: If my math is right. 

Cortez Masto: …and that $250 million to $350 million is going to be paid by a financier or 
concessionaire, but you -- and I guess I’m trying to understand how you 
define that.  Who is that?  Is that a financial institution?  Do we go out to 
Wall Street, we put money out there?  What does that look like and how 
does that money come into the State of Nevada to help us pay for it?  Are 
they -- or is that private financier or concessionaire putting up their own 
money and they’re on the hook for -- along with the State of Nevada to help 
fund this?  I guess I’m -- I just need an understanding of that. 

Hoffman: Yes.  I’m going to bring up the expert.  Come on up. 

Parker: For the record -- for the record, again, Mike Parker with Ernst & Young, 
Infrastructure Advisors.  And so I think your question has a few different 
elements packed into it, so I’ll start and I have a feeling you may have a 
follow-up.  At the RFQ stage, you’ll be receiving statements of qualification 
from teams, and so they will be an affiliated group of companies that have 
exclusively come together to pursue this opportunity. 

 At the time you enter a contract with them they will have a contractual 
structure within their team that then marries up with you.  So when the 
Department looks at the qualifications of the different respondents, you’ll be 
looking at the qualifications of equity investors who bring just like a -- on 
your house, you can’t borrow 100 percent of your house’s value.  You have 
to put in a little bit of equity.  The teams will have to bring equity providers 
so you’ll qualify them.  You’ll also be qualifying contract -- the lead 
contractors.  You’ll also be qualifying or looking at the qualifications of the 
designers who likely will be working with -- who will be working with the 
contractors.  And then you may also be qualifying their experience in 
operations and maintenance. 

 So those will be the different pieces.  When you sign the contract, the 
contractor will be signed with a special purpose entity, a company that is 
created solely for NEON.  For example, NEON LLC.  That company will be 
capitalized by the equity investors putting in equity and arranging for 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

59 

 

financing perhaps from the TIFIA program, perhaps from issuing bonds or 
receiving bank loans.  And that special purpose company will subcontract 
down to the lead contractors, the responsibility for the construction of the 
project and likewise will make a commitment for the operations and 
maintenance. 

 So who are the entities that sometimes respond to these?  And so I think 
that’s the next (inaudible) question, or the type of entities that provide equity 
to these projects and that provide debt to them.  Is that -- I just want to pause 
to make sure I’m getting your question.  But is that the next part of it? 

Cortez Masto: Yes, please.  Thank you. 

Parker: Okay.  So we’re seeing a developing market here in the U.S. where 
historically private equity firms, we’re providing some of that equity.  And 
it’ll be about 10 percent of the capital that’s needed will be in the form of 
equity, the rest in debt, roughly speaking.  We’ve seen an evolution in the 
market where globally contractor or lead construction firms and industrial 
firms have invested their own equity into these types of projects, and we’ve 
seen that evolution now here with U.S. domestic contractors beginning to 
invest equity from their balance sheet in as well. 

 So you might have a situation where the investors in the project who are 
investing in the right to pay for the construction and receive the availability 
payments in the future.  It might be a combination even of a specialized 
infrastructure investment fund or pension fund even that’s pursuing -- that’s 
purely a financial player, and you might find that even the contractors who 
are going to be part of that team themselves are going to contribute a portion 
of the equity.  That’s been very common to see both in these deals. 

Cortez Masto: And so what control or what part of -- does the state or the NDOT workers 
have in creating this equity partner or creating this structure?  And then to 
what liability does the state have if there are some issues with this 
independent LLC that’s out there? 

Parker: It’s a fairly broad question there.  Yeah, I think we can -- we can get Corey 
to step in on that.  I think you’ve asked a question that’s fairly broad in 
terms of legal responsibilities and otherwise across a huge range.  So I -- 
perhaps maybe what you’re asking, the key simple way of thinking about 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

60 

 

this from our perspective for the state is that your control, one of the key 
places it stems from is the fact that the road is always yours.  This is a 
service contract.  The other area of control that occurs is because you have 
your money still.  So during the construction you’ve paid for the right-of-
way which is yours.  Then the state’s not paying anything during the project 
construction except for the completion payment at the completion of 
construction and then the future availability payments. 

 And so this is sort of -- everybody talks about risk transfer for PPP’s.  This 
is where it is.  Unlike a normal project, the state has effectively -- has 
retainage essentially.  You have all of the money and so the key piece of 
leverage is if the private partner is not performing then the state doesn’t pay.  
And likewise in the operations and maintenance period, the key difference 
between an availability payment and a debt payment is that you only pay to 
the extent that the project is available in meeting the performance conditions 
you expect.  So it’s sort of like a 35-year warranty or retainage, and so your 
primary control stems from the fact that you have the cash. 

Cortez Masto: Right.  Except there’s equity partners involved, correct?  And if there’s 
equity partners involved and for some reason there’s nonperformance by the 
contractor or something goes wrong, who are they going to look to to ensure 
their investment?  Not those individuals, but to the state, wouldn’t they? 

Parker: It’s sort of the other direction which is that the equity partners, in order to 
make this investment need to find contractors who can guarantee the 
delivery of the job.  And likewise before the federal government or through 
the TIFIA program or bond holders lend money to that private 
concessionaire entity.  They, too, need to be satisfied that the contractors 
who have undertaken on a back-to-back basis the commitment to build the 
project can guarantee their own performance.  And should they not perform 
that’s why it’s equity that’s at risk, but trust that they too will look to the 
contractors to ensure that they get their return if the contractors do perform. 

Cortez Masto: Oh, and I appreciate that.  I just assumed that there’s some sort of language 
in there that protects the state from them trying to come back after the state 
if they’re (inaudible) perform by the contractor. 

Boocke: Okay.  And Corey Boocke -- wow.  Corey Boocke with Nossaman Firm, for 
the record.  One thing I’d like to elaborate on, what Mike has indicated is 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

61 

 

the private financing we’ve been talking about that.  That is not an 
obligation or debt of the state.  So if that does not get repaid by the private 
entity, they cannot come to the state to get that payment.  It is not a state 
obligation. 

 There are a number of aspects of that relation -- if equity is not getting 
performance from the contractor, the contractor in their structure may have 
provided letters of credit or bonds to the equity, not running in favor of the 
state but to support their obligations.  And that’s something that equity will 
require of their team as well as the lenders that are lending in.  Mike alluded 
to the fact that we generally see about 10 percent, give or take, as equity and 
about 90 percent of their capital structure is debt. 

 The lenders will be seeking a significant amount of security and collateral, 
so to speak, from their borrower and making sure that they are comfortable, 
and they will have an array of rights vis-à-vis their borrower, a private 
entity, not the state, the private entity to step in and fix their, you know, their 
issues oversight over them before they release any of their loan proceeds to 
give to the concessionaire and the contractor to make sure that the work is 
being done and being done properly.  In many ways, the lender interests are 
quite aligned with that of the state’s interests in making sure that the project 
is done, is done well and is done on time because their overall collateral 
package at the end of the day is that the availability payments are made. 

 If substantial completion of the project is never made or if the private entity 
is not performing and their availability payment is being reduced or 
eliminated, then the only means by which the lenders get repaid is going 
away.  So they are very interested in making sure that their borrower, the 
single-purpose vehicle concessionaire, and then all of those subcontractors 
are performing. 

Cortez Masto: And so when it comes to the TIFIA program, really that’s up to that -- I 
don’t know what you call it, that LLC or that individual unit to apply for and 
make the most efficient use of the funds and possibly the TIFIA funds as 
well; is that right? 

Boocke: Sure, that’s an excellent question.  The TIFIA process is -- under MAP-21 
starts with a letter of interest.  And that is typically done by the government 
agency during the procurement process.  So you would submit a letter of 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

62 

 

interest and if you pass through those initial screens, work with the TIFIA 
office in terms of coming up with a basic approach and outline of the loan.  
Once you have a selected team, they would become the applicant for the 
loan and the ultimate borrower.  So, again, the ultimate TIFIA loan would 
not be a debt or an obligation of the state.  You are really facilitating it up to 
the point that we have made -- gone through the procurement process, have 
a selection, and then at that point they kind of pick up the baton to get to the 
financial close where they’re injecting in their equity, bringing in the TIFIA 
loan, and if there’s other forms of debt, they’ll be arranging for that, at that 
time, as well. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  So that -- just to verify, that letter of interest would be initiated by 
the team and the team then would be responsible for obtaining the loan, 
paying back the loan, anything having -- liability having to do with the 
TIFIA loan would be part of the team and not the State of Nevada? 

Boocke: The letter of interest is initiated by the state.  The application and the 
ultimate loan agreements will be with the private entity and the state would 
not be -- would not have obligations under those -- for repayment of the 
debt.  It’s not a state debt. 

Cortez Masto: So the only involvement that the State of Nevada has with the TIFIA 
program is the letter of interest and that’s it? 

Boocke: Yes, letter of interest and facilitating to the point that you’ve selected the 
team, at which point they take over -- take over. 

Cortez Masto: Okay. 

Boocke: And they are the -- they are obligated to the loan, not the state. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  And then the team itself, is it the members of the team going to come 
to the Board so we give approval to the members of the team or the initial 
team or we look at the RFP or RFQ for this process?  How does that work? 

Boocke: I think as a… 

Hoffman: (Inaudible), sorry.  Thank you.  So, yes, we’ll be moving through the RFP 
process like we normally do for design-build projects.  And there is an 
approval -- there is an approval step by the Board.  Actually, the Board will 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

63 

 

approve the RFP itself and then we’ll approve the selection, and then we’ll 
approve financial close or award of the project. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  And then the additional cost to amend for the advisor agreements for 
stage two, is that going to be part of this cost for P3 or is that an additional 
cost, and do we know what that is yet? 

Hoffman: It’s an additional cost for stage two, but we’re thinking it’s going to be very 
similar to the stage one in which for the legal and financial advisors I -- 
remember, I promised $3 million.  We think it’s -- stage two is going to be 
in the same ballpark, so we can absorb that $3 million and would be 
counting on paying that after amending Nossaman’s and Ernst & Young’s 
contracts. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  And then I have a question for my staff, Dennis Gallagher.  Dennis, 
have you had a chance to look at the legal ramifications of this moving 
forward and really taking a look at the structure as well as any other 
financial implications to ensure that the state of Nevada is protected, and do 
you have any concerns moving forward from a legal perspective? 

Gallagher: For the record, Dennis Gallagher, Attorney General’s Office.  General, 
we’ve assigned a deputy that’s been involved in this process with the -- with 
the teams to date.  Most of what I understand your questions to involve 
including the vehicle, who the entities are and the structure would be in 
stage two.  Those would be where we would really dig in and get the 
answers to that including -- and developing the RFP and the language in the 
RFP regarding the relationships between the parties.  And then, of course 
ultimately, you know, the Board would approve the RFP and then ultimately 
get the recommendation who the successful applicant will be, and as I’m 
trying to see the timeline that would occur in late 2014. 

 But to date, our office has been satisfied with the procedures that have been 
followed.  There are still a lot of unanswered questions, but those questions 
would not be answered until such time as this Board would authorize NDOT 
to go forward. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  Thanks, Dennis.  And then finally, if I understood correctly in the 
previous Q&A with some of the Board members, there is still time through 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

64 

 

this stage two to pull out if we have to with limited penalties, financial -- 
fiscal penalties to the state; is that correct? 

Hoffman: Bill Hoffman, for the record.  Yes.  Yes, we could.  But I will say that the 
longer that we wait, the longer this process goes on the more costs there will 
be to the Department and most cost to industry.  So what we can’t forget is 
there are teams and contractors and subs and consultants really looking 
forward to this opportunity for job creation.  And if we all of a sudden, in 
May of 2014, cancelled the project or step out, that would be a huge hit to 
those teams.  But, yes, indeed.  From today moving forward there is the 
opportunity to step out if we think that it makes -- if it’s the right decision 
both from a cost standpoint, liability and risk standpoint, there is that 
opportunity to step out.  Yes, there is.  I just wanted to… 

Cortez Masto: Okay. 

Hoffman: …be sure and clear that there are -- the longer we wait the more risk there is. 

Malfabon: And, Madam Attorney General, this is Director Malfabon.  One of the other 
steps that we need to take is to -- because our -- the next biennium budget 
did not have bonding in it, we do have to go to the Interim Finance 
Committee of the legislature to request approval.  So we’ll have to explain 
in detail to those members what this -- what’s being proposed here to deliver 
Project NEON and get approval from IFC for bonding, which was part of 
both scenarios. 

Cortez Masto: Okay.  Thank you, Rudy.  Thank you, Governor.  I appreciate the Board’s 
diligence for my questions. 

Sandoval: And does that satisfy you, Madam Attorney General?  Because I think, you 
know, I have some of the -- had some of the same questions and concerns.  
But it’s kind of a catch 22 here.  We have to make this investment in order 
to make an informed decision as we move along.  And we are making 
significant investment with Nossaman and Ernst & Young to make sure that 
we have this proper information, so as we move forward on this calendar of 
decision making that we have every fact and every piece of information so 
that when we come to the ultimate decision we’ll have all that in front of us.  
Today is not that day.  Today is that day where we get some of these 
estimates and things so that we can move forward to start to prepare the RFP 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

65 

 

and get these responses and all the interested parties can come forward and 
make their presentations. 

 But I sense from you, Madam Attorney General, and I don’t know if this is 
accurate or not, but that we may be committed more -- you may believe that 
we’re committed more than we really are.  I don’t think we are committed if 
we vote to approve this today.  We’re committed to moving forward again 
to gather this information and receive what we need so that we can have a 
fully completed RFP and such.  Mr. Hoffman, you’re nodding your head.  I 
think I have -- do I have that right? 

Hoffman: Yes, Governor, that’s correct.  So for the record, Bill Hoffman.  That’s 
exactly correct.  Now, we will be -- we will be selecting the delivery -- the 
delivery option.  So where our hands are tied from that point is that all of the 
RFP documents will be prepared for the DBFOM hybrid method.  So we 
heard from our own internal advisors and industry that moving forward with 
several options and having them kind of bid on options was really a very 
inefficient way to do that.  So the whole reason we’re coming to you today 
with this decision is to choose the selection -- or the delivery option so that 
we can write the necessary RFP documents for that, but there is the 
opportunity to step out if we absolutely need to do that.  Yes, sir. 

Sandoval: And we will have spent… 

Cortez Masto: So… 

Sandoval: …whatever, $5 million to $10 million getting to that point which we don’t 
get back, but we need to make that expenditure in order to make an 
informed decision. 

Hoffman: Yes, Governor, that’s correct. 

Sandoval: Madam Attorney General, I didn’t mean to cut you off. 

Cortez Masto: No.  Thank you, Governor.  No, I appreciate the clarification because that 
makes me feel more comfortable, except I do have one question.  On the 
recommendations for Board action today there is -- the Department is also 
seeking preliminary approval to issue bonds to finance and proceed with the 
acquisition of right-of-way necessary for delivery of Phases 1, 3 and 4.  Is 
that also part of the recommendation today? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

66 

 

Hoffman: Well, that’s why it’s -- sorry, Governor.  I’m going to… 

Malfabon: What -- this is Director Malfabon.  In response, I think that we would 
proceed, Madam Attorney General, with the briefing to the Interim Finance 
Committee members to let them know that we’re going to be requesting 
that.  But we would need to bring you, the Board kind of more detailed 
information on the bond structure and how -- the amounts of that, I think, 
before we would -- this is just basically conceptual approval to proceed with 
this concept of issuing bonds to finance and proceed with the acquisition of 
right-of-way.  But the process would take some time and we would actually 
bring back, when we have a more defined amount of the bond amounts, to 
approve to -- to give it to the Board for approval formally, but this is just 
conceptual approval of this procurement method. 

Sandoval: And, Mr. Director, will we have made that decision before it goes to IFC? 

Malfabon: We should have that information, Governor, before we go to IFC.  We want 
to go to IFC with the actual amounts, so we would go to the Board first with 
the actual amounts.  And the structure of this procurement is several -- and 
committing to several issuance of bonds, so it’s several years of bonding.  
So that is unique, rather than just a one shot approval.  So we will be getting 
approval of this concept, specific amounts by the Board and then specific 
amounts by the IFC.  But I think that it’s good to brief the IFC about the 
concept of the procurement and the bonding so they know that it’s coming 
as a formal request in the future for the specific amounts of the bonds. 

Sandoval: I think that’s wise to inform IFC as much in advance as possible.  What 
happens in the unlikely scenario but possible that IFC says no? 

Hoffman: That’s a good question, Governor. 

Malfabon: Yes.  And that is something -- that’s why we want to start those briefings 
quickly.  And obviously the Board of Finance has to approve the issuance of 
bonds. 

Sandoval: But, again, what happens if… 

Malfabon: If the IFC says no -- in either case, design-build and bond or the public-
private partnership with design-build-finance-operate and maintain -- we 
were selling bonds, so it really would make us step back and look at what’s 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

67 

 

the -- we would look at design-build, but what could we afford with our 
current revenue. 

Sandoval: Well, that would… 

Malfabon: So it would definitely -- we wouldn’t be able to afford the huge 
improvement and job creation and improving in operations from Phase 4 
that we had presented today to the Board. 

Sandoval: And I’m not trying to put pressure on IFC today.  I just think we, you know, 
I just want to know all -- kind of like the Attorney General.  We need to 
know… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: …the entire universe of possibilities here. 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm. 

Sandoval: And what I’m hearing from you is if IFC were to say no, that would remove 
the $300 million of the state’s investment in this project, and then we’d have 
to look at what we could get for the other $300 million. 

Malfabon: Yes, it would raise the cost of the project as far as your annual payments… 

Sandoval: And we’d probably… 

Malfabon: …and would affect the annual work program. 

Sandoval: We’d lose Phase 4, I would imagine, as well. 

Hoffman: Yes. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: Let me go to Madam Controller and then Member Fransway. 

Wallin: Thank you, Governor.  Madam Attorney General, I too -- when they came to 
meet with me, and I appreciate staff coming to meet with me, I had 
questions on their numbers because the chart was a little different than the 
original one.  And now this one’s even different than what we had 
discussed.  So… 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

68 

 

Hoffman: Yes. 

Wallin: …so I understand what you are looking at and the confusion there as well.  
As Controller and CFO of the state, I have looked at these numbers even 
though the net present value, yes, it’s going to be 7 to 13 percent more than 
the -- with the hybrid versus the design-build bond.  In looking at these 
numbers, to me this is the most financially prudent way that we should go.  
It makes more sense.  I feel more comfortable as Controller that we have the 
money available than if we were to do design-build bond.  Okay. 

 And also on the public-private partnerships, the P3s -- and I think this is 
something -- this is brand new for the State of Nevada that we’re doing this 
and it’s very confusing, because we’re looking to bond for the right-of-way.  
We’re looking to do an upon completion bond to the contractor to reduce 
some of our cost going forward, because we can bond for less money than 
paying a private financer.  So that’s where we get confused as to who’s 
loaning what money and stuff, right.  I can see that.  So the state really is 
we’re doing our usual bonding for the right-of-way and for a small amount 
of the money upon completion.  Okay.  The rest of the project is being 
funded by the contractor… 

Sandoval: Mm-hmm. 

Wallin: …and we’re going to be paying them back by what we call availability 
payments.  And that means that if the contractor has not completed the 
project to our satisfaction, number one, we’re not going to give them a bond 
for upon completion and we don’t pay these availability payments.  
Secondly, if they do complete it to our satisfaction and we start to pay the 
availability payments, because they’re responsible for the maintenance and 
operation of the project, if they’re not performing and the road people can’t 
transit on it or that we have delays, then those payments get reduced. 

 I think the tricky part of this contract is going to be determining those 
performance indicators.  That’s going to be the trickiest part of it; coming up 
with the performance indicators, what we expect so we can determine if the 
availability payments should be paid or not.  Okay. 

 One other thing I learned in the P3s, when I first came on this Board, I had 
the opportunity to attend several P3 conferences and I learned that in P3s 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

69 

 

you get your most value when you do design-build-operate and maintain 
because it’s in the best interest of the contractor to build a project that’s 
going to make it easier and more efficient and cost effective for them to 
maintain it on the other end.  So I think we get a better project, a better 
product by doing a design-build-operate and maintain because the contractor 
-- it’s in their best interest to have a road that maybe they make a little 
thicker so they don’t have to go back so soon. 

 So I’m in support of this project.  I did have concerns when staff came in, 
but they did tell me that, yes, we have places where we still pull out if we 
have to if things change.  So I would be in support of this project and I think 
it’s in the best interest of the state to move ahead, because, one, we need to 
go and fix the roads down in Southern Nevada, make them safer and we 
need to generate jobs as well.  And this project, it generates jobs in Southern 
Nevada and keeps jobs in the rest of the state, which is just as important.  So 
I will be voting in favor of it if we go forward. 

Sandoval Thank you.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Can someone update the Board on the amount or 
numbers of rights-of-way that have been obtained to date as opposed to 
numbers of rights-of-way that we need to obtain, and will that change if we 
do, in fact, authorize Phase 4? 

Terry: John Terry again.  And I’m not going to -- it would take a little bit of work 
to give you exact numbers, but I’m going to get you in the ballpark if that 
answers your question.  Phase 1 right-of-way was in the range of $120 
million of which we’ve acquired more than 60 percent of it.  Phases 3 and 4 
combined are $90 million or less of right-of-way and much of that is utility 
relocations which we lump in with right-of-way, which obviously we’re at 
zero at. 

 So in terms of the total project right-of-way, if you add those together, we’re 
nowhere near acquiring half of the right-of-way.  So we have a lot of work 
to do.  That’s why we want to get started on the Phase 3 and 4 right-of-way 
because it’s a good 18 to 24-month process.  I don’t know if I answered 
your question.  I can get you exact numbers on parcels and whatever, but 
nobody here has that off the top, you know, right off the top of their head.  
But that’s in the ballpark of where we stand. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

70 

 

Fransway: Yeah, you did answer ballpark.  And thanks. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Member Fransway, that’s actually a question that I had asked in November, 
and I’ve asked that question again in April, along with Member Martin to 
get those numbers.  And what we wanted to see was what had they 
estimated that it was going to cost and what did we actually pay.  And so… 

Malfabon: Yes, Madam Controller, we are gathering that information.  You had 
requested it previously and I spoke with Project Manager Cole Mortensen 
who is probably watching from Mexico, right, Bill? 

Hoffman: I don’t think he’s watching… 

Malfabon: He’s on vacation. 

Hoffman: …anything right now.  He’s vacationing. 

Malfabon: He actually has been informed that that’s one of the standing items that has 
been requested parcel by parcel, not just -- because he previously gave an 
overview of entire right-of-way.  And we wanted to give the Board a more 
informed parcel by parcel of what we estimated and what we actually paid. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Other questions or comments from Board members?  And I’ll kind of 
say something in addition to the Controller.  And Cole’s not here today and I 
wish he could have been here today, because he’s put so much work, as 
well, into this project along with all of NDOT.  But I recall from one of the 
initial presentations, the -- because of the population growth, the traffic 
growth that is occurring in Southern Nevada, we need to move forward on 
this project.  Now, we have to do it in the most cost beneficial matter.  We 
have to do all these things that we discussed today. 

 But this is incredibly important, this project, to the future of Southern 
Nevada, Las Vegas, Clark County.  Considering all the economic 
development issues that we’re working on, the quality of life, public 
safety -- you start thinking about all these things.  And we, you know, this is 
probably -- I don’t want to overstate it, but one of the most important 
infrastructure projects that this Department will work on in the next 10, 15 
years. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

71 

 

And, you know, Madam Attorney General, I agree with you.  We have to be 
very vigilant with regard to the dollars here and make sure that the state can 
afford this.  But it’s also a question whether we can afford not to either 
because of the effect that this will have.  And I’m really pleased that we’re 
able to fit Phase 4 into this, because of that one slide that you had up there 
with regard to the impacts that that’ll have. 

 And I recall from one of the earlier presentations that this is a project that 
otherwise would have been spread out over 20 to 30 years, and by the time it 
gets built it’s obsolete.  We need to do it now.  And that’s why this approach 
is extremely important.  So I just wanted to try to put things in perspective 
here as to what we’re talking about today and the timing of it because, 
again, it just makes no sense to me to spread it out when by the time we 
finish it we’ll have to be working on something else. 

 So I like the Controller in full support of this.  We still have the opportunity 
as we move along if numbers aren’t right, if these proposals are different 
than what we anticipate that we can make a different decision.  But at this 
point in time, I think it’s prudent as well as extremely important and 
necessary that we continue to move forward on the track that we’re on.  
Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And I just want to concur exactly with what you’re 
saying.  Time is of the essence to take action.  And when we’re looking at, I 
think they said 5,000 lane changes in peak hour periods alone, that doesn’t -- 
what about the other 23 hours?  I mean, we have serious traffic here.  And I 
agree with you, Governor, that we need to take the right action here today 
and get on with it.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any other comments from Board members? 

Cortez Masto: Governor, it’s Catherine. 

Sandoval: Yes, Madam Attorney General. 

Cortez Masto: Just let me say I appreciate your comments.  And, in fact, when I’m down 
here half the month, two weeks of every month, I drive this I-15 from Blue 
Diamond all the way to the downtown area, so I’m very familiar with this 
whole Interstate 15 and the need for what they’re doing here.  And I 
absolutely support the concept.  I thank you for answering my questions.  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

72 

 

Moving forward though, as long as the fiscal clearly needs to make sense 
and we have the ability to pay without liability to the state that would be my 
main issue. 

 I want to thank everybody for answering my questions today.  Based on the 
questions and what I’ve heard on the -- that we’ve put on the record, I’m 
willing to support this moving forward today with the next step that we need 
to take for Project NEON.  So thank you again for your indulgence and 
patience. 

Sandoval: All right.  Thank you, Madam Attorney General.  And I’d ask that you put 
the last slide up to make sure… 

Hoffman: Sure. 

Sandoval: …that we have the right motion when I take one. 

Hoffman: So it’s, I think, down here. 

Sandoval: And just to be clear, Mr. Gallagher, does that include all the information we 
need to in order to move forward with regard to the action as described in 
Agenda Item No. 12? 

Gallagher: I believe, Governor -- for the record, Dennis Gallagher from the Attorney 
General’s Office.  The primary recommendation the staff is asking is that 
the Board approve the hybrid of DBFOM as the delivery method with the 
bonded construction completion.  And to include Phase 4 in the construction 
along with Phases 1 and 3 of Project NEON, and authorize staff to at least 
alert the Interim Finance Committee that it may be coming forward in the 
future for approval from the Interim Finance Committee to approve a bond 
offering in connection with the Board’s decision here today. 

Sandoval: All right.  Board members, any other questions or comments before I accept 
a motion? 

Wallin: No. 

Sandoval: If there are none, the Chair will accept a motion. 

Wallin: All right.  I make a motion that we use the hybrid DBFOM delivery method 
with a bonded construction completion payment and that we include Phases 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

73 

 

1, 3 and 4 in this project, and that they -- NDOT goes to the Interim Finance 
Committee to advise them that we are looking to bond for the right-of-way.  
Is that good? 

Gallagher: Yes, Madam Controller, that’s very well said. 

Fransway: Second. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Madam -- good answer.  We have the motion that has been made by 
Madam Controller, second by Member Fransway.  Any questions or 
comments on the motion?  My only comment being that, again, I would 
strongly encourage the Department to get with every member of the Interim 
Finance Committee and ensure that you’ve made the investment and time 
that you’ve made with all the Board members prior to your presentation at 
the -- at that particular IFC meeting.  So we have a motion and a second.  
Any further questions or comments?  All those in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no?  The motion passes.  Congratulations and I think all the 
members of the -- of this Board will agree that we truly appreciate the hard 
work of the individuals who’s been associated with this project from NDOT 
as well as our contractors that are working with us.  Thank you, 
Mr. Hoffman. 

Hoffman: Thank you, Governor. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: We will move on to Agenda Item No. 13, briefing on the Connecting 
Nevada Plan. 

Malfabon: Governor, to cleanse the pallet, if we’re going to go on to a planning study, 
Tim Mueller from Planning Division is here to present the outcomes from 
the Connecting Nevada Plan. 

Mueller: Good afternoon, Governor, members of the Transportation Board, Director 
Malfabon.  For the record, I’m Tim Mueller.  I work in the Transportation 
Multimodal Section.  And first of all, before I do anything else, I would like 
to recognize our Project Manager for Connecting Nevada, Lolene Terry with 
HDR.  Without her efforts, the study would not have been possible. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

74 

 

 Our goal at Connecting Nevada is really to be innovative, to create a new 
transportation system for Nevada.  We’ve been at this for a while.  These 
photos that you see right here are from a meeting that we had in August of 
2005, and it was the Statewide Transportation Technical Advisory 
Committee, shortened up to STTAC.  And we had meetings to come up with 
the original scope of what Connecting Nevada grew up to be. 

 The original thought of Connecting Nevada came from Chairperson Charlie 
Kokowski (sp?), who at one point was the STTAC Chair and the Public 
Works Director for the City of Las Vegas.  And he asked the basic question 
what can we do differently.  The outflow of that is what you have in front of 
you, the Connecting Nevada study.  Our study, purpose and goals, what 
makes Connecting Nevada different.  The main thing that makes Connecting 
Nevada different is we originally started out with no stakeholders at the very 
beginning.  By the time we got to our first stakeholder meeting we had 300 
in our database.  By the time we had our public meetings at the very end of 
the study we had 900. 

 We look to establish policies and procedures to do transportation planning.  
Within the federal government they require us to do a 20-year look at 
transportation planning.  Connecting Nevada goes far beyond that, all the 
way out to a 50-year planning horizon.  We tried to be multimodal in scope, 
looking at all different types of transportation for the different segments of 
road.  We also looked to improve our planning and environmental processes.  
We have tools in our toolbox now that we didn’t have prior to Connecting 
Nevada. 

 Our first one is the travel demand model.  How we got that is we were 
talking about the metropolitan’s planning organizations earlier today.  We 
asked and received all of their models.  We stitched those together into our 
transportation network.  We also have a GIS suitability tool where we were 
able to layer different types of GIS data together and perform great analysis.  
This is the cover of our planning and environmental linkages document.  
And we created a web mapping tool which is a great resource for anybody 
to use.  It’s available on our Connecting Nevada webpage.  You can turn 
different layers on and off.  This particular map here shows the functional 
classifications of Nevada roadways, the blue being the interstates, the red 
being the U.S. routes. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

75 

 

 Our project timeline on this, we had an original Phase 1 which was a 
feasibility study that got completed in September of 2009.  Phase 2, which 
you have in front of you, began in May of 2011 and the report got published, 
delivered to us in April.  If you haven’t had the chance to go out to 
ConnectingNevada.org, I would highly recommend it.  There’s a lot of 
project information there including our stakeholder documents that goes into 
terrific detail of what our stakeholders told us. 

 Again, what makes Connecting Nevada different, the large amount of 
stakeholders and their involvement.  We modeled our Technical Advisory 
Committee who we invited to that after this Board here where we have 
non-NDOT representatives on that Board.  For Las Vegas, we had the Las 
Vegas Convention and Visitors Bureau.  In Reno, we had International 
Game Technology.  And in District 3 in Elko we had Newmont Mining.  So 
from the very get-go, before we even had one meeting we had stakeholders 
representing our districts.  We had a series of Technical Advisory 
Committee meetings and Steering Committee meetings over the course of 
the study.  In addition to the stakeholder meetings that we had, we had those 
meetings in lots of different locations.  We had them in Las Vegas and 
Reno, Winnemucca, Elko and Ely and Tonopah. 

 Under primary needs, again, this was collected by talking with our 
stakeholders.  These same five areas were the same no matter if you were 
southern, northern, eastern, western, urban or rural.  And with that, 
Mr. Governor and members of the Board, I would like to conclude my 
presentation and open it up for questions. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  I actually did look through the entire 
packet and it’s a tremendous amount of work, and as you reminded us that 
it’s been going on since 2005.  But you said -- I was impressed with the 
amount of stakeholders that you did have involved.  And what was that 
number?  I mean, it was two full pages single-spaced. 

Mueller: Yes, that’s correct, Governor.  We have 900 people within our database.  
And they’re listed by organization on the inside front cover of the document, 
because it’s just important to show how many people have a vested interest 
in Connecting Nevada. 

Sandoval: I guess the better question was who wasn’t involved. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

76 

 

Mueller: I don’t know. 

Sandoval: No, I just -- again, I mean that as a compliment as how thorough that is.  
Any other questions or comments from Board members?  All right.  Thank 
you very much. 

Mueller: Thank you. 

Sandoval: We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 14, old business.  Mr. Director. 

Malfabon: Governor, on old business we have the report on the Construction Working 
Group activities.  This is the subgroup of the Transportation Board that’s 
been looking into primarily some issues related to construction projects such 
as Prompt Pay, DB Program, closeout of projects.  And they’ve been 
actively engaged in providing guidance to the Department in terms of how 
we’re trying to improve those processes and trying to close out projects in a 
more timely manner.  We appreciate the involvement of the Controller and 
Member Martin under the leadership of Len Savage on this Construction 
Working Group.  We’re prepared to answer any questions about the 
materials provided on what the working group has been looking into.  
Seeing none, Governor… 

Sandoval: Well, perhaps -- I don’t know if Member Savage wanted to have any 
comments with regard to the CWG. 

Savage: Yes, thank you, Governor, and I would at this time.  I sincerely consider this 
a privilege to work with Madam Controller and Member Martin and 
Mr. Malfabon and his staff, Mr. Nelson, Mr. Terry.  There’s so many people 
within the group.  I think it’s been extremely beneficial to take some 
low-flying fruit off the level of the Board and always having the opportunity 
to take it back to the Board.  In the urgency, the workshops, the meetings 
that we have have been very productive and I compliment Mr. Shapiro as 
well, the staff, Mr. Kaiser, Mr. Dorinson.  There’s so many people out there, 
the FHA.  Everybody has been involved on the field and it’s extremely 
valuable to have the roll-up-your-sleeve discussions and try to take care of 
the issues at hand, looking towards a better future for the construction side 
of this Department.  So I thank you, Mr. Malfabon, Mr. Hoffman… 

Malfabon: Thank you, Member Savage. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

77 

 

Savage: …your entire staff. 

Malfabon: I know that one of the things that has really benefitted from the instructions 
and the direction given by this working group is that a lot more meetings are 
happening on a regular basis between the resident engineers who are really 
where the rubber hits the road on construction administration… 

Savage: Mm-hmm. 

Malfabon: …to actively engage them on how we can improve our processes both in 
terms of working with our contractors and how we administer our contracts 
and closeout our contracts.  So I thank the staff and the districts and the 
resident engineers for their efforts, as well as the leadership from the 
Construction Division and from Assistant Director of Operations Rick 
Nelson. 

Savage: And one other thing I forgot to thank Tracy as well, and there are probably 
some other people, but sincere thanks.  Thank you, Mr. Malfabon.  Thank 
you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Martin. 

Martin: Yes, sir.  Thank you.  I, too, wanted to thank Terry.  I sent down what was 
it, two weeks ago or so, and she went through plans.  They went through, 
her and Mary, and it was astonishing the amount of progress they made.  
And I committed to attend one of their meetings, and I think that one’s in 
July that -- where they sit down and meet with the resident engineers and 
have a discussion.  So I appreciate your help very, very much (inaudible).  
That was awesome to get that kind of one-on-one interaction, so thanks 
again. 

Malfabon: And her commitment to see -- follow through on a lot of those 
improvements, Deputy Director Tracy Larkin Thomason has actually 
traveled around to the other districts, gone up to Elko and met with the 
resident engineers up there too.  So I appreciate your comments, Member 
Martin. 

Sandoval: No, and my thanks to everybody who’s involved because I know it’s a lot of 
additional commitment, time and effort.  But I also know that the 
construction industry really appreciates it and it is a great opportunity for 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

78 

 

them to interface with the members of this Board.  And as you say, it’s 
really taken some of the workload off of our regular Board meetings, but at 
the same time it’s improved the relationship between the Department and 
the Board and the construction industry in a very big way.  So thank you. 

Martin: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Mm-hmm. 

Malfabon: The next item, Governor, is Outside Counsel Cost Report for open legal 
matters.  And as you can see, we have several law firms that are assisting the 
Department in various cases, primarily in the areas of construction litigation 
and a lot going towards the imminent domain issues that we see on Project 
NEON, Boulder City, and on Cactus Interchange.  So we benefitted 
immensely from the assistance from Laura Fitzsimmons.  I wanted to 
mention specifically because she’s really changing the way that we do 
business at the Department both in terms of right-of-way acquisition and 
engineering on our projects.  So informing our engineers and project 
managers how to deliver projects in a -- in a manner that reduces and 
mitigates risk.  So it’s more upfront now as far as the consideration on how 
much these projects could cost and how we can reduce impacts on imminent 
domain.  So we’re willing to answer any questions about the Outside 
Counsel Costs on open matters. 

 I see none.  The Monthly Litigation Report includes several imminent 
domain actions.  It kind of gives you an update.  We do have the Add 
America case that will -- one of those cases is going to the Supreme Court, 
correct, Dennis? 

Gallagher: Yeah.  We hope. 

Malfabon: And so there’s -- several are related Project NEON, and just a necessity in 
order to acquire imminent domain through the imminent domain process.  
We have to take folks to court.  As you pointed out, Governor, sometimes 
people don’t even give a counteroffer.  They just want more money, but they 
don’t define that or substantiate it, so we find ourselves unfortunately in 
court.  But we’re always willing to negotiate with the property owners in 
these imminent domain actions.  There’s also tort claims, contract disputes 
and personal matters listed there.  Unfortunately, we can’t get into some of 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

79 

 

the legal details, but at least we can provide the report of what we’re dealing 
with in terms of monthly litigation. 

 In section -- well, that kind of covers Sections C and D.  The Section E is 
the fatality report.  And you can see that we’ve had enough (inaudible) in 
fatalities.  The latest information is that we’re about flat with comparison to 
last year at this time.  And hopefully we’ll take the rest of the year -- as you 
saw in the contract that you approved today, we are taking the right steps 
with our projects and also with our partners in law enforcement, in the 
education arena and in emergency medical response to drive those fatality 
statistics down in our state.  These numbers are provided for -- that cover 
every state and local road in Nevada.  So we work in partnership with those 
local agencies as well to try to drive these numbers down. 

 In the future, we will have a presentation on outlining these efforts in the 
safety program to drive down fatalities on our roads as we’ve adopted a zero 
fatalities program in our state.  Any questions about the fatality statistics? 

Sandoval: Is there a breakdown between the fatalities on the highways versus the 
surface streets? 

Malfabon: I believe that we can get that, so we’ll provide that in the future. 

Sandoval: Mr. Martin -- or Member Martin, excuse me. 

Martin: One of the things I noticed in driving 95, you’re now using the (inaudible) 
standardize as we were informed last month, so… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Martin: …I was -- I’ve seen that on a number of occasions.  I think that’s pretty 
impactful.  I think the last number I seen was 114. 

Malfabon: Yes, we rolled it out when we, unfortunately, had reached that benchmark of 
100 fatalities.  And as Member Martin has indicated, it’s very impactful.  It 
makes it more personal.  It makes people more aware of their own driving 
habits.  And that’s the key, I think, in driving behavior is to start with 
ourselves and how we drive down the road.  Do we speed?  Do we do some 
things that make us distracted with cell phone use, which is illegal?  And 
definitely seatbelt usage is another area that we’re trying to improve.  Even 
though we have good utilization in our state, we’ll present some information 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

80 

 

in our safety presentation about how we could impact those numbers and 
drive them down if we had seatbelt usage increase, because that’s where we 
see a lot of the fatals and serious injuries. 

Sandoval: In the -- just one more.  Member Savage. 

Savage: Yes, thank you, Governor.  And one other thing that -- the license plate 
frame I think the Department came out with as far as the zero fatalities. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Savage: I’ve seen it on a few vehicles and it just -- it stands out so strong because 
you’re right behind that other vehicle.  And I don’t know if that’s in 
conjunction with DMV or the Department, but it’s a great avenue, I believe, 
to again educate the population.  Thank you, Mr. Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you. 

Malfabon: That is in partnership with the Department of Public Safety, the Office of 
Traffic Safety.  So they produce a lot of those types of devices and things 
that can spread that message and really drive that home.  So I know that Bill 
Hoffman has one of those license plates holders on his vehicle. 

Hoffman: I do. 

Malfabon: I still have to put mine on, but I do have it. 

Hoffman: I have a screwdriver. 

Malfabon: We’ll do it at lunch time. 

Sandoval: Please proceed.  Any further? 

Malfabon: Governor, I just wanted to highlight a few of the upcoming Board items.  As 
I mentioned, we will have the EPA audit contract, kind of the consultant 
contract.  It’s going to address the audit findings in that coming up forward 
hopefully next month.  I wanted to talk about specifically the water rights 
issue and the property acquisition issue that we went through on Falcon 
Capital and the lessons learned for the Department so we can avoid that type 
of situation in the future.  We’ll have that in the coming month, an in-depth 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

81 

 

presentation on the right-of-way acquisition, but also an overview of how 
the PISTOL and imminent domain law changes in Nevada are affecting the 
Department.  And also eventually we’ll have a -- we are looking at 
alternative means of funding through vehicle miles traveled instead of the 
per gallon gas tax.  And we’ll have a presentation either next month or the 
month after on that alternative funding study that NDOT has participated in 
with other states.  And also an overview of the safety program as I 
mentioned during the Fatality Statistics Report. 

Sandoval: Does that complete your report on old business? 

Malfabon: Yes, and I wanted to mention that the Attorney General has asked about a 
bill that I had -- I (inaudible) and not covered in the legislative update of the 
Director’s Report.  But Senate Bill 322 did pass with an amendment.  
Madam Attorney General had graciously offered to step off the Board with 
some of the other Board commitments that she has on Board of Examiners 
and other issues.  She saw it as an opportunity to volunteer to step off the 
Transportation Board and allow the Governor to appoint another member 
that would represent Southern Nevada. 

 As you saw today, anyone that was watching this Board meeting knows that 
our Board is very engaged and very deliberative in its decision making.  
They ask a lot of questions, so I just wanted it to be known that our Board is 
doing what a board is supposed to do in directing the Department and being 
very engaged and making those decisions and providing that direction.  So 
it’s a -- in some of the press that was supported in the original format of that 
bill to have a lot more representatives from Southern Nevada, I think it was 
putting some information out there that was in error as far as the Board’s 
decision making versus how much federal revenue that the state receives.  
We’ve actually received plenty of money from other states that didn’t 
obligate their federal funds.  So the Board has been very engaged, and I just 
wanted to note that.  The change in the Board would go into effect January 
of 2014. 

Sandoval: So, Madam Attorney General, you’re still with us for another six months. 

Cortez Masto: Thank you.  I appreciate that. 

Sandoval: Any questions from Board members with regard to Agenda Item No. 14? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

82 

 

Fransway: I have a question. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: This is to you and Rudy.  I apologize, I didn’t ask it earlier, but it’s relative 
to the legislative session.  And I’m wondering if the 85-mile an hour speed 
limit, how did that go? 

Malfabon: The 85-mile per hour speed limit did not pass, so it didn’t even make it to 
the Governor’s desk.  Another one that was safety related was motorcycle 
lane splitting.  That did not pass either. 

Sandoval: There was another bill that did pass that I’ve signed with regard to the 
private sponsorship of rest areas if you… 

Malfabon: Yes, and… 

Sandoval: …want to go into detail on that. 

Malfabon: …that was one that we worked in concert with Department of Tourism.  
And the idea there is to offset some of the state’s cost in providing services 
through the rest areas.  We also could look at it as an opportunity to provide 
wireless connectivity at rest areas.  So any type of expenditure that we have 
at rest areas; janitorial services, lawn care or landscape maintenance, power 
bills -- all these things come into effect at rest areas.  And our state wants to 
continue to provide rest areas because of the safety element and the quality 
of life element of providing rest areas.  But the key is that the sponsorship is 
an opportunity now similar to what we have on our Sponsor a Highway 
program.  So private companies could come in and offset some of the state’s 
cost at rest areas. 

Fransway: Are there different levels of sponsorship? 

Malfabon: We do have to develop that program, and I think that that’s a good 
opportunity that we could -- you’ve seen that on other sponsorship programs 
where they have kind of the gold level, silver level.  And we entertain a lead 
level because anything that offsets our costs, that’s where you go. 

Sandoval: All right.  We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 15, public comment.  Is there 
any member of the public here in Carson City that would like to provide 
comment to the Board?  I see none.  We’ll move to Las Vegas.  Madam 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

83 

 

Attorney General, is there anyone present who would like to provide public 
comment to the Board?  Can you hear us in Southern Nevada? 

Malfabon: It must have froze up. 

Sandoval: Well, I don’t know if we can adjourn the meeting without getting public 
comment from Southern Nevada. 

Gallagher: Governor, they pose an interesting question.  I hope I don’t have to research 
it.  So I’m trying to buy a little time here for the reconnection. 

Malfabon: That’s District 1, so it just disconnected.  So… 

Sandoval: Why don’t we call her directly on the phone and then if there’s somebody 
there we can patch them through on the speaker. 

Malfabon: Do you have her number? 

Unidentified Male: Yeah.  Well, we’ll find the number (inaudible). 

Malfabon: Oh, okay. 

Unidentified Male: We can’t call her on the phone either, so the network has gone down. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Unidentified Male: We tried her cell phone number… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Unidentified Male: …our network has gone down. 

Unidentified Female: Do you want me to call her secretary and see if she can connect me to her? 

Malfabon: I think the Controller (inaudible). 

Sandoval: Okay.  We’ll wait a couple minutes and -- does that mean if the whole 
network is down that they can’t hear the audio as well? 

Unidentified Male: Correct. 

Sandoval: All right. 

Unidentified Male: We’ve lost power somewhere.  That’s why we have no connection. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

84 

 

Malfabon: I’m going to call the main office there. 

Sandoval: We’ll give it a couple other minutes to see if the Controller can reach the 
Attorney General.  I think we did this one meeting before where we had a 
cell phone. 

Unidentified Male: We did.  We did. 

Malfabon: Yeah, I’m going call the main desk there and ask them to just check the 
room and then -- I’m getting a busy signal.  That’s weird. 

Gallagher: Governor, if you’ll excuse me, I’m going to run and pick up a copy of the 
open meeting law just in case. 

Malfabon: Yeah, that’s what I’m trying to -- hey, Mario, it’s Rudy.  We’ve lost 
connection on the video conference.  Could you go over to where the 
Transportation Board meeting was being held in Building B and see if there 
was anybody waiting to provide public comments?  Okay.  The only two 
people in the room were the Assistant District Engineer and the Attorney 
General.  So there was nobody to provide public comment.  They left.  So 
I -- if you could go confirm that there’s nobody there in the room then that 
way we can adjourn.  I’ll just stay online.  I don’t want to lose you.  Okay.  
Bye-bye. 

Sandoval: Mr. Gallagher. 

Gallagher: Governor, the -- after some quick research I believe the open meeting law 
merely requires that two public comment periods be made available, not 
necessarily at every location.  And I think given the technical difficulties 
that we may or may not have people present in other locations is suffice -- I 
think the open meeting law is met if you offer public comment here in 
Carson City. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Well, and for purposes of the record, we have had a representative 
from NDOT check the room.  Neither the Attorney General or the employee 
of NDOT is there anymore.  And there’s no other member of public present 
in Southern Nevada.  Also, just for the record, that we’ve had a technical 
difficulty, so as a practical matter it’s been impossible for us to 
communicate with the Southern Nevada meeting room and we took public 
comment at the beginning of this meeting from Southern Nevada. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

June 10, 2013 
 

85 

 

Gallagher: Yes, Governor. 

Gomez: Hey, Rudy? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Gomez: The room is empty. 

Malfabon: The room is empty. 

Sandoval: All right. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Mario. 

Sandoval: So we have confirmation from whom was that? 

Malfabon: It was Mario Gomez, Assistant District Engineer. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Mario Gomez, the Assistant Engineer has advised us that there’s no 
one present in the room, so we will close public comment and move on to 
adjournment.  Is there a motion to adjourn? 

Wallin: I move to adjourn. 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: We have a motion by the Controller, second by Member Martin.  All those 
in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: This meeting is adjourned.  Thank you, ladies and gentlemen. 

 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary to the Board     Preparer of Minutes 

 



 
                  
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

June 25, 2013 
 

To:  Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
From:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
Subject: July 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #6: Update on U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Audit and 

NDOT’s Storm Water Program – Informational Item Only 
 
 
Summary: 
 
The EPA issued to NDOT an Audit report dated May 10, 2012 outlining potential permit 
violations, operational issues requiring improvement, and other storm water program 
deficiencies. Initial information regarding the Audit and NDOT’s Stormwater Program 
were presented at the May 13, 2013 meeting. This presentation provides detail about the 
Stormwater Permit Program, its commitments, a summary of proposed consultant 
services to help meet those commitments as well as an update on possible EPA driven 
changes to the Clean Water Act. 
 
Background: 
 
NDOT’s stormwater program is mandated by the Clean Water Act through the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater (NPDES) Program. The Program’s 
intent is to prevent harmful pollutants from being generated and washed from our 
stormwater infrastructure otherwise known as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
System (MS-4).   
 
NDOT was issued a NPDES permit authorizing the discharge of municipal stormwater 
runoff to waters of the United States. This permit, defines conditions and requirements in 
which stormwater runoff can be discharged.   
 
Analysis: 
 
The five part comprehensive NPDES permit defines how NDOT is to manage 
stormwater discharge and related administrative, construction and maintenance 
operations. Permit commitments are extensive ranging from conducting employee and 
contractor training, to mapping NDOT’s statewide stormwater infrastructure, detecting 
illicit discharges, preparing facility stormwater plans, updating and creating stormwater 
manuals and annually documenting NDOT’s overall stormwater operations. 
 
To enhance the speed at which these potential permit violations and deficiencies are 
being addressed, consultant services are proposed to supplement NDOT’s workforce. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



EPA is currently working towards redefining waters of the United States. If successful, 
additional NDOT resources and time will be required to meet future Section 401 (water 
quality) and 404 (channel dredging and filling) requirements. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only.  
 
Prepared by:  
 
Steve Cooke, Chief, Environmental Services Division 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 June 24, 2013 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: July 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #7: Report on the Department of Transportation’s Efforts to Reduce Traffic 

Fatalities – Informational item only. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
For the past several years, NDOT and the Department of Public Safety, Office of Traffic Safety 
(OTS), along with other safety partners have all been collaborating on highway safety programs 
in an effort to reduce crashes and fatalities on Nevada’s highways. This agenda item and 
presentation will show the effectiveness of a synergistic program approach which utilizes the 4 
“E” philosophy of: education, emergency response, enforcement and engineering. Accurate and 
timely data is also critical to a successful safety program. The combination of engineering, 
incident responder, and road safety audit efforts by NDOT combined with the behavioral 
programs (education and enforcement managed by OTS), has proven effective and resulted in 
a continuously successful program. 
 
In 2006, when fatalities and crashes were at their highest, Nevada experienced 431 fatalities 
and 2,011 serious injuries. Due to the positive influence of the various safety programs we will 
talk about today, in 2012 the number of fatalities was reduced from 431 to 259, a 40% reduction 
in 6 years. Serious injuries dropped from 2,011 to 1,099 in 2012, a 45% reduction in 6 years.  
 
Nevada is one of the three lead states recognized for effective and efficient highway safety 
programs by the FHWA. 
 
Background:  
 
NDOT was an early supporter of the collaborative strategic highway safety plan (SHSP). The 
SHSP is spearheaded by the 13 member Nevada Executive Committee on Traffic Safety and 
supported by a 44 member Technical Working Group Committee, as well as the five Critical 
Emphases Area Teams, the Data Team and the Strategic Communications Alliance which 
consists of media and outreach resources for all SHSP partners and associated agencies. 
 
The initial SHSP document, adopted in 2006, was updated in 2010 and approved by this board 
in April of 2011. The Board also approved the first annual SHSP report on February 11, 2013. 
Within the SHSP, the Technical Working Group and five Critical emphases area Teams agreed 
to develop performance measures across all five critical emphases areas to the strategy level. 
This is above and beyond the original SHSP national concept, but is vital to assess progress, 
better identify issues, and quantify the benefits of the strategies employed. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



 

The 2010 SHSP reduction goals for fatalities and serious crashes were set using a five year 
rolling average data set. The ultimate target is ZERO FATALITIES, with intermediate goals to 
reduce the numbers by half by 2030, which equates to a reduction of about 3% per year. The 
program has greatly exceeded that 3% per year, seeing reductions averaging 7% per year for 
fatalities and serious crashes from 2006 to 2012. However for the years 2009-2013, the 
downward trends have seen a plateau in most cases. There was a sharp increase in pedestrian 
fatalities in Clark County in 2012 and the numbers are near the same so far in 2013. This critical 
emphasis area (pedestrians) is receiving specific, focused, and immediate attention to analyze 
the causes and implement mitigation measures. The positive news for Clark is that year to date 
in 2013 when compared to year to date in 2012, the alcohol related fatalities are down more 
than 50%. This can be attributed to increased education and enforcement programs conducted 
by OTS, NHP, and Metro. These efforts are sponsored by our FHWA partners using MAP-21 
safety funds. 
 
Analysis: 
 
Efforts at meeting our short and long term goals have been highly successful. Reaching our 
ultimate goal of bringing everyone home safely everyday will become even more challenging in 
the years ahead. Nevada must find new approaches, new resources, and new ways to engage 
all motorists, as well as continue to support our current successful strategies.  
 
List of Attachments 
 
 Web links to: 
 
NDOT Safety Division 
http://nevadadot.com/About_NDOT/NDOT_Divisions/Planning/Safety_Engineering/Safety_Engi
neering.aspx 
 
Office of Traffic Safety 
http://ots.state.nv.us/OTS_About.shtml 
 
Zero Fatalities     
http://www.zerofatalitiesnv.com/ 
 
Strategic Highway Safety Plan 
http://nevadadot.com/About_NDOT/NDOT_Divisions/Planning/Safety_Engineering/Nevada_Str
ategic_Highway_Safety_Plan.aspx 
 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
 
Prepared by:  
Ken Mammen, NDOT Safety Division 
Traci Pearl, Office of Traffic Safety 

http://nevadadot.com/About_NDOT/NDOT_Divisions/Planning/Safety_Engineering/Safety_Engineering.aspx�
http://nevadadot.com/About_NDOT/NDOT_Divisions/Planning/Safety_Engineering/Safety_Engineering.aspx�
http://ots.state.nv.us/OTS_About.shtml�
http://www.zerofatalitiesnv.com/�
http://nevadadot.com/About_NDOT/NDOT_Divisions/Planning/Safety_Engineering/Nevada_Strategic_Highway_Safety_Plan.aspx�
http://nevadadot.com/About_NDOT/NDOT_Divisions/Planning/Safety_Engineering/Nevada_Strategic_Highway_Safety_Plan.aspx�


 
MEMORANDUM 

                             July 1, 2013 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      July 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 8:  Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements and amendments which take the total agreement above 
$300,000 during the period from May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements over $300,000, May 21, 2013 to 
June 17, 2013. 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A. 
 
Prepared by:  The Administrative Services Division 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 1 of 18



Attachment  

A 

Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 2 of 18



                           Attachment A

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed  Original Agreement 

Amount 
 Amendment 

Amount  Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

1 13213 00 JACOBS ENGINEERING 
GROUP, INC

UPDATE HOV STUDY N             1,000,000.00                   -           1,000,000.00 -              7/8/2013 12/31/2014           - Service 
Provider

07-08-13: TO UPDATE THE 2007 
SOUTHERN NEVADA HOV PLAN AND TO 
EVALUATE PHASE 1 HOV SHORT TERM 
PRIORITIES FOR IMPLEMENTATION IN 
PROJECT NEON. CLARK COUNTY.        
NV B/L#: NV20081035082

2 32612 00 JACOBS ENGINEERING 
GROUP, INC

DESIGN SERVICES N                697,550.00                   -              697,550.00 -              7/8/2013 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

07-08-13: DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF 
SIXTEEN (16) ESCALATORS AT THE 
TROPICANA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGES. 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20081035082

3 47212 00 STANTEC CONSULTING 
SERVICES, INC.

IMPLEMENTATION NDOT'S MS-4 
PERMIT STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

N 4,365,000.00            -                4,365,000.00       -              7/8/2013 8/1/2017           - Service 
Provider

07-08-13: SERVICES TO ASSIST THE 
DEPARTMENT WITH IMPLEMENTING 
THE MS-4 PERMIT STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM FOR STATE 
AND FEDERAL REGULATORY 
COMPLIANCE. CARSON CITY.
NV B/L#: NV20101021081

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013

Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 3 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 4 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 5 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 6 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 7 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 8 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 9 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 10 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 11 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 12 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 13 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 14 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 15 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 16 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 17 of 18



Agreements for Approval 
                   Page 18 of 18



 
MEMORANDUM 

           July 1, 2013 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      July 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 9:  Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 

• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013 
• Agreements under $300,000 executed May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013 
• Settlements entered into by the Department which were presented for approval to the 

Board of Examiners May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013 
 

Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational 
item. 
 
Background: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to 
carry out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those 
construction contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or 
agreements not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of 
highways must be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended 
to inform the Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do 
not require any formal action by the Board.  
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance 
of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates 
settlements with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These 
proposed settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and 
advisement of the Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item 
would be any emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting 
period. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    1 of 13



The attached construction contracts, agreements and settlements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013 and agreements executed by the 
Department from May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013.  There was one settlement during the 
reporting period. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures.  
 
List of Attachments:    

 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Under $5,000,000, 

May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013 
 

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Informational Executed Agreements,  
May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013 
 

C) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Settlements approved at June 11, 2013 
Board of Examiners meeting 

 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 
 
Prepared by: Administrative Services Division 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    2 of 13



Attachment  

A 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    3 of 13



 
 STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS AWARDED - UNDER $5,000,000 

May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013 

 
1. March 28, 2013 at 1:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read related to Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 800-13, Project No. NH-STP-015-1(147). The project is for 
demolition, asbestos and hazardous materials abatement for 12 parcels along the I-15 Corridor 
for Project NEON Phase I in Clark County.  
  
Baldwin Development, LLC. ...................................................................................... $972,972.00 
NCM Demolition and Remediation, LP   ................................................................. $1,238,029.00 
Central Environmental, Inc. .................................................................................... $1,475,826.00 
Tab Contractors, Inc.  ............................................................................................. $2,049,500.00 
Las Vegas Paving Corporation ............................................................................... $2,050,792.00 
 
The Director awarded the contract on May 22, 2013, to Baldwin Development, LLC in the 
amount of $972,972.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the State will 
enter into contract with the firm.  

 
Engineer's Estimate: $2,221,000.00  

 
2. May 16, 2013 at 1:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read related to Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 3542, Project No. SPI-080-1(071). The project is to remove and 
replace bridge deck, approach slab wearing surfaces with polymer concrete overlay, repair open 
incipient spalls & delaminations throughout bridge deck and approach slabs, remove & replace 
asphaltic plug joints at structures B-764 E/W & G-765 on I-80 in Washoe County.  
 
Q & D Construction, Inc. ........................................................................................ $1,330,000.00 
Road and Highway Builders, LLC   ......................................................................... $1,486,604.00 
MKD Construction, Inc. .......................................................................................... $1,779,000.00 
American Civil Constructors   ................................................................................. $1,758,794.79 
 
The Director awarded the contract on June 4, 2013, to Q & D Construction in the amount of 
$1,330,000.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the State will enter into 
contract with the firm.  

 
Engineer's Estimate: $1,648,940.36  

 
 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    4 of 13



Attachment  

B 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    5 of 13



Attachment B   

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date
Agree 
Type Notes

1 02912 02 NV ENERGY ADJ COMPANY UTILITY 
FACILITIES

Y 118,555.62      94,512.60          300,840.17      -                   2/17/2012 12/31/2017 6/5/2013 Facility AMD 2 06-05-13: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING COSTS FOR THE FUTURE 
ADJUSTMENT OF THE COMPANIES UTILITIES FACILITY TO INCREASE 
AUTHORITY BY $94,512.60 FROM $206,627.57 TO $300,840.17 FOR 
PROJECT NEON.
AMD 1 01-08-13: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING COSTS FOR THE FUTURE 
ADJUSTMENT OF THE COMPANY'S UTILITY FACILITY.
02-17-12: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING COSTS FOR ADJUSTMENTS TO 
THE COMPANY'S UTILITY FACILITIES. PROJECT NEON, PACKAGE 1, 
CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV19290000016

2 18913 00 LAS VEGAS VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT

RELOCATE WATER LINE N -                   -                     -                   -                   5/22/2013 12/31/2015           - Facility 05-22-13: RELOCATE AN EXISTING 24 INCH WATER LINE, CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

3 20413 00 NV ENERGY REMOVE SERVICE WIRE 
NEON

Y 11,766.62        -                     11,766.62        1,000.00          5/30/2013 6/1/2020           - Facility 06-05-13: REMOVE SERVICE WIRE FOR DOWN & OUT RELATED TO 
NEON, PHASE I, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV19831015840

4 21313 00 NV ENERGY SPEED LIMIT SIGNS IN 
WASHOE

N -                   -                     -                   -                   6/5/2013 6/4/2015           - Facility 06-06-13: VARIABLE SPEED LIMIT SIGNS IN WASHOE VALLEY, WASHOE 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

5 21413 00 NV ENERGY SPEED LIMIT SIGNS IN 
WASHOE

N -                   -                     -                   -                   6/5/2013 6/4/2015           - Facility 06-06-13: VARIABLE SPEED LIMIT SIGNS IN WASHOE VALLEY, WASHOE 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

6 21513 00 NV ENERGY SPEED LIMIT SIGNS IN 
WASHOE

N -                   -                     -                   -                   6/5/2013 6/4/2015           - Facility 06-06-13: VARIABLE SPEED LIMIT SIGNS IN WASHOE VALLEY, WASHOE 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

7 01813 00 ST. THERESE CHURCH LEASE STATE OWNED 
PROPERTY

N -                   -                     -                   62,500.00        1/4/2013 10/31/2032           - Lease 01-04-13: TO LEASE STATE OWNED PROPERTY FOR PARKING, 
PLAYGROUND AREA AND ORNAMENTAL FENCING, WASHOE COUNTY.  
NV B/L#: NV20111006388

8 17813 00 BILL HAMLIN MONTGOMERY MS #1 N -                   -                     2,400.00          2,400.00          5/22/2013 4/30/2017           - Lease 05-22-13: LEASE OF A MAINTENANCE STATION HOUSE (MONTGOMERY 
#1) TO NDOT EMPLOYEE TO LOCATE STAFF IN REMOTE LOCATION IN 
MINERAL COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

9 18013 00 STEVE ROBINSON MONTGOMERY MS #4 N -                   -                     2,400.00          2,400.00          5/22/2013 4/30/2017           - Lease 05-28-13: LEASE OF HOUSE #4 AT MONTGOMERY MAINTENANCE 
STATION. MINERAL COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

10 18413 00 BOWERS FAMILY 
INVESTMENTS

675 FAIRVIEW DR CC Y 16,363.68        -                     16,363.68        -                   6/1/2013 12/31/2013           - Lease 06-01-13: LEASE MONTH TO MONTH 675 FAIRVIEW DRIVE FOR RIGHT 
OF WAY OFFICE, CARSON CITY.  NV B/L#: NV20091559201

11 19313 00 JACK'S VISION, LLC PARCELS S-564-CL-
011.200 / 217

N -                   -                     -                   10,000.00        5/23/2013 4/30/2033           - Lease 05-23-13: LEASING PARCELS S-564-CL-011.200 AND S-564-CL-011.217 
FOR FIVE YEARS WITH OPTIONS FOR 3 ADDITIONAL 5 YEAR TERMS, 
CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20031186720

12 19413 00 HENDERSON 
INDUSTRIAL PARK, LLC

PARCELS S-564-CL-
011.252

N -                   -                     -                   10,000.00        5/23/2013 4/30/2033           - Lease 05-23-13: LEASING PARCELS S-564-CL-011.252 FOR FIVE YEARS WITH 
OPTIONS FOR 3 ADDITIONAL 5 YEAR TERMS UP TO 20 YEARS, CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20051805361

13 22513 00 O'FLAHERTY RENTALS, 
LLC

480 CAMPTON ST 2ND FL 
CREW 922

N 12,500.00        -                     12,500.00        -                   5/24/2013 10/31/2013           - Lease 06-17-13: CONSTRUCTION CREW OFFICE LEASE FOR C922 AT 480 
CAMPTON STREET 2ND FLOOR ELY NV 89301. WHITE PINE COUNTY.  
NV B/L#: NV20041310680

14 30993 06 SPARKS NUGGET LEASE I-80-WA-016.382 N -                   (1,200,000.00)   -                   4,284,000.00   8/1/1993 8/1/2033 5/23/2013 Lease AMD 6 05-23-13: AIRSPACE LEASE FOR PARCEL I-80-WA-016.382; 
CHANGE EXPIRATION DATE FROM 08-01-13 TO 08-01-33. ALSO CHANGE 
RENT FROM $12,850.00 TO $5,000.00 PER MONTH.
AMD 5 06-23-05: CHANGE OF CONFLICTING LANGUAGE.
AMD 4 12-31-01: CHANGE OF LANGUAGE REFERRING TO LEASE AS 
EXISTING LEASE.
AMD 3 12-20-95: EXTEND LEASE TO 07-31-33.
AMD 2 : MISSING
AMD 1 07-17-93: PERMISSION TO ERECT SIGNS.
07-14-93: TO LEASE AIRSPACE OVER STATE OWNED PROPERTY, 
WASHOE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV19601001152

15 19513 00 BATOR, STANLEY AND 
ROSE

EASEMENT S-650-WA-
021.225TE

Y 4,100.00          -                     4,100.00          -                   5/23/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

05-23-13: TEMPORARY EASEMENT RIGHTS PARCEL S-650-WA-
021.225TE, WASHOE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000

May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    6 of 13



Attachment B   

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date
Agree 
Type Notes

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000

May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013

16 19713 00 EDDIE & MINA 
SANCHEZ

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-
021.248TE

Y 1,300.00          -                     1,300.00          -                   5/29/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

05-29-13: TEMPORARY EASEMENT PARCEL S-650-WA-021.248TE PHA, 
WASHOE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

17 19813 00 DAVID & CATHY 
STEWART

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-
021.272TE

Y 1,200.00          -                     1,200.00          -                   5/29/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

05-29-13: TEMPORARY EASEMENT RIGHTS PARCEL S-650-WA-
021.272TE PHA, WASHOE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

18 20813 00 BING W & SHA-LIH 
CHEN

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-
021.118TE

Y 2,800.00          -                     2,800.00          -                   6/3/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

06-05-13: TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
SOUTHEAST MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-WA-
021.118TE, WASHOE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

19 20913 00 ANTHONY L 
QUIDANCHAY/KIMIE 
ANN

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-
021.118TE

Y 2,100.00          -                     2,100.00          -                   6/3/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

06-05-13: TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
SOUTHEAST MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-WA-
021.118TE, WASHOE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

20 21613 00 JUAN & ARACELI 
ESCOBAR

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-
021.380TE

Y 1,000.00          -                     1,000.00          -                   5/1/2014 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

06-06-13: TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
SOUTHEAST MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-WA-
021.380TE, WASHOE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

21 22313 00 NEVADA DIVISION OF 
FORESTRY

REPLACE RWIS N -                   -                     -                   -                   6/10/2013 6/1/2015           - ROW 
Access

06-10-13: REPLACEMENT OF SOLAR POWERED ROAD WEATHER 
INFORMATION STATION (RWIS), PARCEL #050-210-25, WASHOE 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

22 11313 01 AERO AIR, LLC. HOT SECTION 
INSPECTION

N 80,000.00        14,722.36          94,722.36        -                   4/23/2013 7/30/2013 6/14/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 06-14-13: INCREASE AUTHORITY $14,722.36 FROM $80,000.00 
TO$94,722.36 DUE TO THE NEED FOR REPAIRS FOUND DURING HOT 
SECTION INSPECTION.
04-23-13: HOT SECTION INSPECTION AND SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE 
AND REPAIRS OF THE TWIN COMMANDER AC690C AIRCRAFT'S LEFT 
AND RIGHT TPE331-10T-511K ENGINES. CARSON CITY.  NV B/L#: 
NV20131128086

23 11910 01 MERLE DEE 
MIDDLETON 
JANITORIAL

REST AREA 
MAINTENANCE

N 49,500.00        15,000.00          64,500.00        -                   6/8/2010 12/31/2013 6/4/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 06-04-13: INCREASING AUTHORITY BY $15,000.00 TO BRING 
AGREEMENT TOTAL TO $64,500.00 FOR CONTINUED SERVICES.
06-08-10: JANITORIAL SERVICES, WATER VEGETATION AND WEED 
MAINTENANCE AT THE LUNING REST AREA LOCATED ON US 95 AT 
MILEPOST 24.34 IN MINERAL COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20101365955

24 13413 00 ESEA GIS ROAD NETWORK Y 100,000.00      -                     100,000.00      -                   5/31/2013 6/30/2013           - Service 
Provider

05-31-13: TO CONFLATE THE STATE GIS ROAD NETWORK AND TEN OF 
THE MOST DEVELOPED COUNTY ROAD NETWORKS, CARSON CITY.  
NV B/L#: NV20131336057

25 17213 00 ANDERSON VALUATION 
GROUP

STATE VS 2.5 ACRE @ 
DEAN MARTIN

Y 12,000.00        -                     12,000.00        -                   4/26/2013 4/30/2015           - Service 
Provider

05-22-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL FOR A CONDEMNATION ACTION, 
STATE VS 2.5 ACRES @ DEAN MARTIN, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: 
NV20041285225

26 17313 00 HARPER-SNYDER & 
ASSOC

STATE VS RR PASS 
INVESTMENT GROUP

Y 50,000.00        -                     50,000.00        -                   1/18/2013 2/1/2015           - Service 
Provider

05-22-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL AND EXPERT WITNESS FOR A 
CONDEMNATION ACTION, STATE VS RAILROAD PASS INVESTMENT 
GROUP, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: 20121003824

27 17413 00 GEORGE C GARCIA INC STATE VS AD AMERICA Y 25,000.00        -                     25,000.00        -                   5/2/2013 5/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

05-22-13: REAL ESTATE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS AND 
EXPERT WITNESS TESTIMONY, STATE VS AD AMERICA, CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV19951166962

28 17513 00 SNYDER MECHANICAL REMOVE EXHAUST FAN N 23,253.00        -                     23,253.00        -                   5/22/2013 12/31/2013           - Service 
Provider

05-22-13: QA-007-13 REMOVAL OF THE EXISTING SIDEWALL EXHAUST 
FAN, VENTILATION, AND CONTROLS; UPGRADE TO THE EXISTING AIR 
UNIT. ELKO COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20011319542

29 17613 00 APEC CONSULTANTS BIRD NETTING SAHARA 
BRIDGE

N 176,774.00      -                     176,774.00      -                   5/22/2013 12/31/2013           - Service 
Provider

05-22-13: Q1-004-13R INSTALLATION OF BIRD NETTING UNDERNEATH 
SAHARA/UPRR BRIDGE STRUCTURE, MILEPOST CL 40.56 IN CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20051055015

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    7 of 13



Attachment B   

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date
Agree 
Type Notes

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000

May 21, 2013 to June 17, 2013

30 17909 02 H2O ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANING HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS

N 1,000,000.00   -                     1,100,000.00   -                   7/1/2009 6/30/2014 6/6/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 2 06-06-13: EXTEND THE EXISTING TERMINATION DATE FROM 
JUNE 30, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014, TO ALLOW CONTINUED HAZMAT 
REMEDIATION WHILE AN RFP IS DEVELOPED.
AMD 1 06-14-11: TIME EXTENSION FROM 06-30-11 TO 06-30-13. 
INCREASE AUTHORITY FROM $1,000,000.00 TO $1,100,000.00 TO 
ALLOW FOR CONTINUED EMERGENCY ON-CALL HAZMAT CLEANUP.
07-01-09: PROVIDE NDOT WITH EMERGENCY ON-CALL CLEANUP OF 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ALONG NDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY STATEWIDE.  
NV B/L#: NV19961214703

31 18113 00 AERO AIR LLC PURCH/INSTALL 
AIRCRAFT AVIONICS

N 294,000.00      -                     294,000.00      -                   5/29/2013 10/31/2013           - Service 
Provider

05-29-13: PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF THE COMMANDER 
AC690C AIRCRAFT AVIONICS, CARSON CITY.  NV B/L#: NV20131128086

32 18310 2 JACOBS ENGINEERING 
GROUP

I-15 ITS DB 
ADMINISTRATION

N 749,684.21      -                     1,928,355.14   -                   7/9/2010 12/31/2013 6/6/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 2 06-06-13: TIME EXTENTION FROM 06-30-13 TO 12-31-13 TO 
ALLOW FOR COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.
AMD 1 05-23-11: FOR CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT FOR 
THE I-15 ITS DESIGN-BUILD PROJECT. TIME EXTENSION, ADD TO 
SCOPE OF SERVICES, AND INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $1,178,670.93 
FROM $749,684.21 TO $1,928,355.14.
07-09-10: TO ASSIST THE DEPARTMENT WITH ENGINEERING AND 
DESIGN BUILD ADMINISTRATION OF THE I-15 INTELLIGENT TRAFFIC 
SYSTEMS (ITS) DESIGN BUILD PROJECT. CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: 
NV20081035082

33 18513 00 THE DIFEDERICO 
GROUP

R/E APPRAISAL AND 
EXPERT WITNESS

Y 20,000.00        -                     20,000.00        -                   4/18/2013 2/1/2015           - Service 
Provider

04-18-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL AND EXPERT WITNESS SERVICES 
FOR NEGOTIATIONS AND CONDEMNATION CASE, CLARK COUNTY.  NV 
B/L#: NV20021361729

34 18613 00 ANDERSON VALUATION 
GROUP LLC

R/E APPRAISAL AND 
EXPERT WITNESS

Y 30,000.00        -                     30,000.00        -                   2/15/2013 2/28/2015           - Service 
Provider

02-15-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL AND EXPERT WITNESS SERVICES, 
STATE VS JENKINS, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20041285225

35 18713 00 CLIF USHER, SIGN 
CONSULTANT

SIGN CONSULTING SVCS Y 25,000.00        -                     25,000.00        -                   5/23/2013 5/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

05-23-13: OUTDOOR ADVERTISING SIGN CONSULTING SERVICES, 
INCLUDING SIGN STRUCTURE VALUATION AND EXPERT WITNESS 
SERVICES FOR TRIAL, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20091630443

36 18813 00 DONNA SUE MASON LAND/MINERAL 
RESEARCH

Y 25,000.00        -                     25,000.00        -                   2/4/2013 2/28/2015           - Service 
Provider

02-04-13: LAND TITLE AND MINERAL TITLE RESEARCH SERVICES FOR 
A CONDEMNATION CASE AND EXPERT WITNESS, STATE VS JERICHO 
HEIGHTS, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20131282255

37 19213 00 JONES MEDIA INC RELOCATE 
BILLBOARD/STORAGE

Y 25,750.00        -                     25,750.00        -                   5/22/2013 12/31/2014           - Service 
Provider

05-22-13: RELOCATION AND DISMANTLEMENT OF BILLBOARD, AND 
STORAGE RENT UP TO 18 MONTHS AT $310.00 PER MONTH, CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV19981406051

38 20113 00 SYLVESTER & 
POLEDNAK LTD

STATE VS FITZHOUSE 
ENTERPRISES

N 290,000.00      -                     290,000.00      -                   5/31/2013 5/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

05-31-13: LEGAL SUPPORT CONDEMNATION RE: STATE VS FITZHOUSE 
ENTERPRISES INC FOR PROJECT NEON, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: 
NV19981131366

39 20713 00 SIERRA NEVADA 
CONSTRUCTION

CATTLE GUARD US 395 N 88,007.00        -                     88,007.00        -                   6/4/2013 12/31/2013           - Service 
Provider

06-04-13: CATTLE GUARD ON US 395 IN DOUGLAS COUNTY.  NV B/L#: 
NV19881009372

40 21713 00 CHAPMAN LAW FIRM 54 B LLC VS CLARK CO/ 
NDOT

N 250,000.00      -                     250,000.00      -                   6/6/2013 11/30/2015           - Service 
Provider

06-06-13: LEGAL SUPPORT INVERSE CONDEMNATION RE: 54 B LLC VS 
CLARK COUNTY AND NDOT, CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20011462722

41 21913 00 LAS VEGAS PAVING REPLACE OVERHEAD 
SIGNS I-515

N 264,000.00      -                     264,000.00      -                   6/10/2013 12/31/2013           - Service 
Provider

06-10-13: Q1-007-13 TO REMOVE AND REPLACE OVERHEAD SIGNS ON I-
515 BETWEEN SOUTH BOULDER HIGHWAY AND I-15 IN CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L: #NV20051055015

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    8 of 13



Attachment  

C 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    9 of 13



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    10 of 13



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    11 of 13



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    12 of 13



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                                    13 of 13





 

 

 June 27, 2013   
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: July 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #11: Old Business  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment A. 
 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment B. 
 
c. Fatality Report dated June 24, 2013 - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment C. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters -  Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated June 24, 2013 - Informational item only. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Rudy Malfabon, Director 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



Contract Per iod Contract and Amendment 
D t

Nossaman, LLP Pioneer Program  9/23/09 - 7/1/13 9/23/2009  $                   125,000.00 
Legal and Financial Planning  Amendment #1 2/23/2010  $                    80,000.00 
NDOT Agmt No. P282-09-002  Amendment #2 10/6/2010  $                    30,000.00 

 Amendment #3 10/26/2010  $                    30,000.00 
 Amendment #4 8/31/2011  $                   365,000.00  $              630,000.00  $                189,025.42 

Nossaman, LLP Project Neon  3/11/13 - 3/11/15 3/11/2013 1,400,000.00$                
Legal and Financial Planning
NDOT Agmt No. P014-13-015

1,400,000.00$             $             1,326,814.85 
Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Ad America

 8th JD  - 4 Eminent Domain Cases
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P301-11-004

6/14/2011 - 8/31/13 6/14/2011  $                   406,675.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  Expansion of Scope 
 Amendment #2 Approval Pending  $                    85,000.00  $              406,675.00  $                       839.77 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT
1st JD 120C 00030 1B
 Contract # 3407 (Wells Wildlife Crossing)
 NDOT Agmt No. P082-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                   150,000.00 

 $              150,000.00  $                  24,592.84 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT
1st JD 120C 00032 1B
Contract # 3377 (Kingsbury Grade)
 NDOT Agmt No. P083-12-004

3/1/2012 - 3/30/2015
Amendment #1

3/1/2012
2/18/13

 $150,000.00
$75,000.00 

$225,000.00  $              225,000.00  $                  21,634.55 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Construction Claims Williams Brother, Inc.
Contract # 3392 (Various in Las Vegas) NDOT 
Agmt No. P084-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                    30,000.00 

 $                30,000.00  $                  26,822.50 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Blue Diamond R.V. and Storage
 8th JD A610962
RE:  Work Order 20359000
NDOT Agmt No. P155-12-004

4/24/2012 - 4/24/14 4/24/2012  $                   107,425.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  $                    88,250.00  $              195,675.00  $                  15,183.76 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Carrie Sanders
8th JD - A-12-664693-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No  P192-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                   541,800.00 

 $              541,800.00  $                497,161.48 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Gendall
 8th JD - A-12-666487-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P325-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                   541,800.00 

 $              541,800.00  $                516,555.08 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust
 8th JD - 12-665880-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P452-12-004

10/23/12 - 10/12/14 10/23/2012  $                   475,725.00 

 $              475,725.00  $                446,011.03 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF JUNE 15, 2013
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Author ity
Contract Author ity 

Remaining

Attachment A



Contract Per iod Contract and Amendment 
D t

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF JUNE 15, 2013
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Author ity
Contract Author ity 

Remaining

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust
 8th JD - A-12-671920-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P476-12-004

11/16/12 - 11/30/15 11/16/2012  $                   449,575.00 

 $              449,575.00  $                437,194.39 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA
 8th JD - A-12-658642-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P508-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                   455,525.00 

 $              455,525.00  $                437,329.55 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980
 8th JD - 
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P507-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                   449,575.00 

 $              449,575.00  $                443,417.17 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC
 8th JD - A-12-671915-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P501-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                   449,575.00 

 $              449,575.00  $                425,817.00 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Condemnation Litigation Consultation
NDOT Agmt No. P510-12-004

12/16/12 - 12/30/14 12/16/2012  $                   300,000.00 

 $              300,000.00  $                142,342.00 

Lemons, Grundy, Eisenberg NDOT vs. Ad America (Appeal)
 8th JD  - A-11-640157-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P037-13-004

1/22/13 - 1/22/15 1/22/2013 $205,250.00 

 $              205,250.00  $                162,542.74 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Wykoff
8th JD - A-12-656578-C
Warms Springs Project - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P071-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013 $275,000.00 

 $              275,000.00  $                192,092.86 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Railroad Pass
8th JD - A-12-665330-C
Boulder City Bypass Project
NDOT Agmt No. P072-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                   275,000.00 

 $              275,000.00  $                262,937.81 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. K & L Dirt
8th JD - A-12-666050-C
Boulder City Bypass Project
NDOT Agmt No. P073-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                   275,000.00 

 $              275,000.00  $                270,325.00 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs.  I-15 & Cactus
Cactus Project - Las Vegas
8th JD - A-12-664403-C
NDOT Agmt No. P074-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                   200,000.00 

 $              200,000.00  $                199,200.00 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT 
8th JD A-13-681291-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P127-13-004

 4/19/13 - 2/28/13 4/19/2013  $                   175,000.00 

 $              175,000.00  $                173,625.00 

Attachment A



Contract Per iod Contract and Amendment 
D t

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF JUNE 15, 2013
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Author ity
Contract Author ity 

Remaining
Watt, Tieder, Hoffar & Fitzgerald Pacific Coast Steel vs. NDOT

K3292 - I-580
2nd JD CV12-02093
NDOT Agmt No. P160-13-004

 4/30/13 - 4/30/15 4/30/2013  $                   275,000.00 

 $              275,000.00  $                220,287.32 

Sylvester & Polednak Fitzhouse Enterprises
(acquired title as Westcare)
8th JD - A-13-660564-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P201-13-004

 5/31/13 - 5/31/15 5/31/2013 290,000.00$                   

290,000.00$                $                288,240.50 

Chapman Law Firm 54 B LLC vs. Clark County & NDOT
8th JD - A-12-674009
NDOT Agmt No. P217-13-004

 6/6/13 - 11/30/15 6/6/2013 250,000.00$                   

250,000.00$                $                250,000.00 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy 
cecommendations, negotiation support and 
advice regarding NEXTEL and Re-channeling 
of NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/2012  $                    77,750.00 

 $                77,750.00  $                  76,340.00 
*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.

Attachment A



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - May 15, 2013       

Fees Costs Total
Condemnations
NDOT vs. 2.5 Acres @ Dean Martin, LLC 8   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus
NDOT vs. AD America, Inc.  (Cactus - Direct) 8   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 68,232.51$    15,163.33$     83,395.84$      
NDOT vs. Bawcon 4   Eminent domain - Elko
NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust, Carmine V. 8   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 10,620.75$    1,269.36$       11,890.11$      
NDOT vs. Falcon Capital 2   Eminent domain  -  I-580
NDOT vs. Fitzhouse/Westcare 8  Eminent domain  - Project Neon
NDOT vs. Gendall Trust 8   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 19,748.50$    1,776.29$       21,524.79$      
NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980, LLC 8   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 3,056.25$      -$                3,056.25$        
NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC 8   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 19,861.50$    2,292.12$       22,153.62$      
NDOT vs. I-15 and Cactus, LLC 8   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 450.00$         -$                450.00$           
NDOT vs. Jenkins, Carrie, aka Carrie Sanders 8   Eminent domain - Project Neon 33,861.75 3,448.09 37,309.84$      
NDOT vs. Jericho Heights, LLC 8   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass

NDOT vs. K & L Dirt Company, LLC 8   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 50.00$           -$                50.00$             
NDOT vs. KP & TP, LLC, Roohani, Khusrow 8   Eminent domain  - I-15 and Warm Springs 
NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA 8   Eminent domain - Project Neon 15,897.50$    1,968.95$       17,866.45$      
NDOT vs. Railroad Pass Investment Group 8   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 1,750.00$      10.25$            1,760.25$        
NDOT vs. Union Pacific Railroad Co.   Eminent domain - Recnstr.  of SR 317
NDOT vs. Woodcock, Jack 8   Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 
NDOT vs. Wykoff Newberg Corporation 8   Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 62,525.00$    10,722.70$     73,247.70$      

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case Outside Counsel to Date

Attachment B



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - May 15, 2013       

Fees Costs Total
Inverse Condemnations
54 B LLC 8   Inverse condemnation 
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (Cactus-Inverse) 8   Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 20,990.00$      2,867.83$        23,857.83$       

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON-Inverse) 8   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 223,244.50$    29,478.65$      252,723.15$     
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (SouthPoint) 8   Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 13,578.55$      1,363.94$        14,942.49$       
Blue Diamond RV & Storage vs. NDOT 8   Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road 163,992.27$    16,300.47$      180,292.74$     
JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon
MLK-ALTA vs. NDOT 8   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon
Nassiri, Fred vs. NDOT 8  Inverse condemnation
P8 Arden, LLC vs. NDOT 8    Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road
Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust vs. NDOT 8   Inverse Condemnation - Project Neon 23,408.75 1,274.78 24,683.53$       
Rural Telephone vs. Dorsey Ln, NDOT 4   Public utility seeks permanent easement
Torts
Allstate Insur. vs. Las Vegas Paving;NDOT Plaintiff alleges property damage and negligence
Austin, Renee vs. State, NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury
Calkins, Allan Bruce vs. Baptista vs. NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence personal injury (3rd party)
Chadwick, Estate of Lonnie Joe vs. NDOT 8    Estate alleges transfer of property without court order
Ewasko vs. State, NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence in design of truck ramp
Harper, Kenneth J. vs. NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence/personal injury/wrongful death
Marshall, Charles vs. State, NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges personal injury
NDOT vs. Tamietti   NDOT seeks injunct. relief to prevent closing access
State Farm Fire and Casualty Co. vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence in failure to maintain roadway
Tefft vs. State, NDOT 8   Plaintiff's allege breached duty in construction of median
Contract Disputes
Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT      Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3377, SR 207 191,205.50$    8,190.04$        199,395.54$     
Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT      Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3407, US-93 118,288.50$    3,944.46$        122,232.96$     
Pacific Coast Steel vs. State, NDOT 2    Plaintiff alleges delays/incomplete design on I-580 Galena 81,000.68$      600.28$           81,600.96$       
Personnel Matters
Akinola, Ayodele vs. State, NDOT  Plaintiff alleges 14th Amendment violation - discrimination
Cooper, Jennifer vs. State, NDOT 9   Plaintiff appeals trial verdict of alleged decrimination
Lau, Stan vs. State, NDOT  Plaintiff is appealing termination

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case
Outside Counsel to Date

Attachment B



                                                                                                                                                  6/24/2013

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY, DIRECTOR NDOT,  HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATOR, 
NDOT TRAFFIC ENGINEERING, FHWA, LVMPD, RENO PD.

FROM: THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY, FATAL ANALYSIS REPORTING SYSTEM (FARS)

SUBJECT: FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE.

Yesterday Crashes Fatals Yesterday Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals

6/23/2013 1 2 6/23/2012 1 1 0 1
MONTH 12 13 MONTH 16 17 -4 -4
YEAR 112 124 YEAR 122 132 -10 -8

CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE. 

2012 2013 2012 2013
COUNTY 2012 2013 % 2012 2013 % Alcohol Alcohol % Alcohol Alcohol %

Crashes Crashes CHANGE Fatalites Fatalities Change Crashes Crashes Change Fatalities Fatalities Change

CARSON 0 4 0 5 0 2 0 3
CHURCHILL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CLARK 86 83 -3.5% 96 91 -5.2% 29 14 -51.7% 30 20 -33.3%
DOUGLAS 1 2 100.0% 1 2 100.0% 0 1 0 1
ELKO 7 0 -100.0% 7 0 -100.0% 2 0 -100.0% 2 0 -100.0%
ESMERALDA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
EUREKA 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0
HUMBOLDT 2 1 -50.0% 2 1 -50.0% 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
LANDER 3 0 -100.0% 3 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
LINCOLN 1 4 300.0% 1 4 300.0% 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0%
LYON 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0% 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0%
MINERAL 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0% 0 0 0 0
NYE 5 5 0.0% 5 8 60.0% 0 0 0 0
PERSHING 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0% 0 0 0 0
STOREY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WASHOE 12 11 -8.3% 12 11 -8.3% 3 3 0.0% 3 3 0.0%
WHITE PINE 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0

YTD 122 112 -8.2% 132 124 -6.1% 38 22 -100.0% 39 29 -25.6%
TOTAL 12 236 ----- -52.5% 259 ----- -52.1% 60 -63.33% 66 ----- -56.06%

2012 AND 2013 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON PRELIMINARY DATA.

COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE.

2012 2013 2012 2013
COUNTY Vehicle Vehicle % 2012 2013 % Motor- Motor- % 2012 2013 % 2012 2013

Occupants Occupants Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist Cyclist Change Bike Bike Change Other Other

CARSON 0 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
CHURCHILL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CLARK 55 53 -3.6% 23 23 0.0% 16 12 -25.0% 1 3 200.0% 1 0
DOUGLAS 0 2 1 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0
ELKO 6 0 -100.0% 0 0 1 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0
ESMERALDA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
EUREKA 1 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HUMBOLDT 2 1 -50.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
LANDER 3 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
LINCOLN 1 3 200.0% 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
LYON 0 0 0 0 1 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0
MINERAL 1 1 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NYE 3 5 66.7% 1 1 0.0% 0 2 1 0 -100.0% 0 0
PERSHING 1 1 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
STOREY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WASHOE 6 6 0.0% 5 2 -60.0% 1 3 200.0% 0 0 0 0
WHITE PINE 0 0 0 0 1 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 0

YTD 79 75 -5.1% 30 28 -6.7% 20 18 -10.0% 2 3 50.0% 1 0
TOTAL 12 156 -51.92% 58 -51.72% 38 -52.63% 3 0.00% 4

Total 2012 259

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE

Attachment C


	Agenda
	Item #2
	Item #5 
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10
	Item #11 
	Item #11 Attachment A
	Item #11 Attachment B
	Item #11 Attachment C




